MIAMI-DADE COUNTY PUBLIC SCHOOLS

Annual Financial Report
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

Business Operations, Financial Operations,
Office of the Controller

Board Meeting of September 10, 2008
Board Item: E-1




THE SCHOOL BOARD OF MIAMI-DADE COUNTY, FLORIDA

Mr. Agustin J. Barrera, Chair
Ms. Perla Tabares Hantman, Vice Chair
Mr. Renier Diaz de la Portilla
Ms. Evelyn Langlieb Greer
Dr. Wilbert "Tee" Holloway
Dr. Martin Karp
Ms. Ana Rivas Logan
Dr. Marta Pérez
Dr. Solomon C. Stinson

Rudolph F. Crew, Ed.D.
Superintendent of Schools



Return completed form to:
Department of Education
Office of Funding and
Financial Reporting
325 W. Gaines St., Suite 824
Tallahassee, FL 32389-0400

FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION
SUPERINTENDENT’S ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT (ESE 145)/
REPORT OF FINANCIAL DATA TO THE COMMISSIONER OF EDUCATION (ESE 348)

DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF MIAMI-DADE COUNTY

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

PAGE NUMBER

CONTENTS: District DOE
Exhibit A-1 Management's Discussion and Analysis ........ccocooovoiiii o 1
Exhibit B-1 Statement of Net Assets ... 2
Exhibit B-2 Statement of ACHVITIES ... 3
Exhibit C-1 Balance Sheet — Governmental Funds....................... 4
Exhibit C-2 Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet to the

Statement of Net AsSets ... 5
Exhibit C-3 Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund

Balances - Governmental Funds ... 8
Exhibit C-4 Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and

Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the Statement

OF ACHVIIES ..ot 7
Exhibit C-5 Statement of Net Assets — Proprietary Funds ... 8
Exhibit C-6 Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets

— Proprietary FUNAS ..o 9
Exhibit C-7 Statement of Cash Flows — Proprietary Funds ................................ 10
Exhibit C-8 Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets ... 11
Exhibit C-9 Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets ................................. 12
Exhibit C-10 Combining Statement of Net Assets — Major and Nonmajor

Component UNitS ... 13
Exhibit C-11a-d  Combining Statement of Activities - Major and Nonmajor Component

UNIES. e e 14-17
Exhibit D-1 Notes to the Financial Statements................cooo 18
Exhibit E-1 Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund

Balances - Budget and Actual — General Fund.................................. 19
Exhibit E-2a-c Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund

Balances — Budget and Actual — Major Special Revenue Funds .......... 20
Exhibit F-1a-d Combining Balance Sheet — Nonmajor Governmental Funds............... 21-24
Exhibit F-2a-d Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in

Fund Balances - Nonmajor Governmental Funds ................................. 25-28
Exhibit G-1 Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund

Balances — Budget and Actual - Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds.... 29
Exhibit G-2 Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund

Balances — Budget and Actual —~ Debt Service Funds........................... 30
Exhibit G-3 Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund

Balances — Budget and Actual — Capital Project Funds ........................ 31
Exhibit G-4 Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund

Balances - Budget and Actuai — Permanent Funds............................ 32
Exhibit H-1 Combining Statement of Net Assets — Nonmajor Enterprise Funds ..... 33
Exhibit H-2 Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund

Net Assets — Nonmajor Enterprise Funds ... 34
Exhibit H-3 Combining Statement of Cash Flows — Nonmajor Enterprise Funds ... 35
Exhibit H-4 Combining Statement of Net Assets — Internal Service Funds............. 36
Exhibit H-5 Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund

Net Assets — Internal Service Funds ... 37
Exhibit H-6 Combining Statement of Cash Flows — Internal Service Funds ............ 38



Return completed form to:

Department of Education
FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION Office of Funding and

SUPERINTENDENT’S ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT (ESE 145)/ Financial Reporting

REPORT OF FINANCIAL DATA TO THE COMMISSIONER OF EDUCATION (ESE 348) [325W. Gaines St., Suite 824

CONTENTS:

Exhibit I-1
Exhibit 1-2
Exhibit I-3
Exhibit -4

Exhibit {-5
Exhibit -6

Exhibit I-7
Exhibit 1-8a-d

Exhibit J-1
Exhibit J-2a-d
Exhibit K-1
Exhibit K-2
Exhibit K-3
Exhibit K-4
Exhibit K-5
Exhibit K-6
Exhibit K-7
Exhibit K-8
Exhibit K-9
Exhibit K-10

Exhibit K-11
Exhibit K-12

Exhibit K-13
Exhibit K-14
Exhibit K-15

Exhibit K-16

DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF MIAMI-DADE COUNTY Tallahassee, FL 32399-0400

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

PAGE NUMBER

District DOE

Combining Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets — Investment Trust

B UGS e e 39
Combining Statement of Changes in Net Assets — Investment Trust
U S e e 40
Combining Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets — Private-Purpose
TrUSE FUNGAS et 41
Combining Statement of Changes In Net Assets - Private-Purpose
TTUSE FUNG S, oot 42

Combining Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets — Pension Trust Funds 43
Combining Statement of Changes In Net Assets — Pension Trust

U S oo e e e 44

Combining Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets — Agency Funds ........... 45

Combining Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities — Agency

UGS e et 46-49
Combining Statement of Net Assets — Nonmajor Component Units...... 50

Combining Statement of Activities — Nonmajor Component Units ........ 51-54
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

—General FUN . .o 55-57 1-3
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

— Special Revenue Fund — Food Services ... 58-59 4-5
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

— Special Revenue Fund — Other Federal Programs ... 60-61 6-7
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in

Fund Balances ~ Special Revenue Fund — Miscellaneous................... 62 8
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in

Fund Balances — Debt Service Funds ... 63 9
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in

Fund Balances — Capital Project Funds ... 64-67 10-13
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in

Fund Balance — Permanent FUNdS ..., 68 14
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund

Net Assets — Enterprise FUNAS ..o, 69 15
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund

Net Assets — Internal Service FUNAS ... 70 16
Combining Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities — School

INterN@al FUNGAS .. 71 17
Schedule of Long-term Liabilities. ... 72 18
Schedule of State Categorical Programs — Report of Funds Available

and EXPenditures ..o 73 19
Schedule of Selected Subobject Expenditures..............s 74-75 20-21
Specific Academic Classroom Instruction and Other Data Collection... 76 22
Schedule 3, School Program Cost Report, General Fund/Special

Revenue FUNAS ... e 77 23
Schedule 4, District Aggregate Program Cost Report, General

Fund/Special Revenue FUNAS ... 78 24

Schedule 5, Supplementary Schedule of Federal Financial
Assistance Program Expenditures ... 79 25



Exhibit A-1
Page 1-A

MIAMI-DADE COUNTY PUBLIC SCHOOLS

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (MD&A)
JUNE 30, 2008

The Management’s Discussion & Analysis (MD&A) of Miami-Dade County Public Schools (the District) is
intended to provide an overview of the District's financial position and results of operations for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2008.

Since the focus of the Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is on the current year activities,
resulting changes and currently known facts, it should be read in conjunction with the District's financial
statements, including the accompanying notes. Additionally, as a required part of the MD&A, compara-
tive information for the current year and the prior year is presented for financial analysis to enhance the
understanding of the District’s financial performance.

Financial Highlights

At June 30, 2008, the General Fund had a fund balance of $32.4 million, representing a decrease of
$105.0 million or 76.4% from the previous year. Of the total fund balance, approximately $5.0 million was
unreserved, undesignated, representing a decrease of $35.6 million or approximately 87.7% from the
previous year. This decrease in the ending fund balance was primarily attributed to a decrease in antici-
pated revenues and an increase in expenditures.

During fiscal year 2007-08, the Florida Legislature reduced funding for the District by approximately
$65.0 million. Tax collections and investment income were also lower than anticipated by $13 million and
$5.0 million respectively. These reductions were as a result of lower state revenues, and the overall dete-
rioration of the economy.

The District issued $538.3 million in Certificates of Participation (COP) Series 2008B for the construction
of new capital projects. The District also issued $233.4 million forward refunding COP Series 2008A for
the purposes of refunding $236.9 million of the outstanding Series 1998A and 1998C. Additionally, due
to the economic turmoil in the financial markets impacting the short term markets, the District's $278.4
million auction rate COP Series 2001B, 2002A, 2002B, and 2007C were converted and privately placed
under a Purchase Agreement delineating pre-approved terms.

The District also issued a $220 million Tax Anticipation Note, Series 2007 for the purpose of funding work-
ing capital for operating purposes. This note will be repaid in October 2008.

A Revenue Anticipation Note (RAN) Series 2008A totaling $66 million was issued for the purpose of
bridge financing for projects funded under the Revenue Anticipation Note Series 2007A. The RAN Series
2008A was repaid by both the COP Series 2008B and the RAN Series 2008B. In addition to partially
repaying the RAN Series 2008A, the $150 million RAN Series 2008B provided interim financing for cap-
ital projects.

The Enterprise Resource Planning System (ERP) $85.4 million project financing was provided under an
extension of the Master Equipment Lease/Purchase Agreement.

The School Board entered into an Interlocal Agreement with the City of Miami for the design and con-
struction of a senior high school for law studies to be co-located with the City’s College of Policing facil-
ities. A total of $11.9 million for construction is funded on a pay-as-you-go basis and deposited in an
Escrow Account under a joint agreement with the City of Miami.
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USING THIS ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

This annual financial report is comprised of different sections. The following graphic is provided to facilitate
the understanding of the format and its components:

Basic Financial Statements

Government-wide Financial Statements

Fund Financial Statements

MD&A Other Required Supplementary Information
Management Discussion & Analysis Required Supplementary Information
(required supplementary information) (other than MD&A)

Notes to the Financial Statements

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The District's Annual Financial Report consists of a series of financial statements and accompanying notes,
with the primary focus being on the District as a whole. The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of
Activities are government-wide financial statements that provide both short-term and long-term information
about the District's overall financial status. The fund financial statements report the District's operations in
more detail by providing information as to how services are financed in the short-term, as well as the
remaining available resources for future spending. Additionally, the fund financial statements focus on
Major Funds rather than fund types. The remaining statements, the Fiduciary Funds Statements, provide
financial information for those activities in which the District acts solely as a trustee or agent for the bene-
fit of others. The accompanying notes provide essential information that is not disclosed on the face of the
financial statements. Consequently, the notes form an integral part of the basic financial statements.

Government-wide Financial Statements

The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities - Most of the activities of the District are
reported in these statements, including instruction, instructional support services, operations and mainte-
nance, school administration, general administration, transportation, and food service. Additionally, all
state and federal grants, as well as capital and debt financ-
ing activities are reported here.

The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities
present a view of the District’s financial operations as a
whole, reflect all financial transactions and provide informa-
tion helpful in determining whether the District’s financial
position has improved or deteriorated as a result of the cur-
rent year’s activities. Both of these statements are pre-
pared using the accrual basis of accounting similar to that
used by most private-sector companies. The Statement of
Net Assets includes all assets and liabilities, both short and
long term.

OVERVIEW OF
THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

*Financial statements.

* Notes accompanying
statements.

* Primary focus on the

rim The Statement of Activities reports all of the current year’s
District as a whole.

revenues and expenses regardless of when cash is
received or paid. The two government-wide statements
report the District's Net Assets (assets minus liabilities) and
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the changes that resulted from the District’'s operations. The relationship between revenues and expens-
es indicates the District's operating results. Over time, increases and decreases in the District's Net Assets
are an indicator of whether the District’s financial position is improving or deteriorating. However, as a
governmental entity, the District’'s activities are not geared towards generating profits as are the activities
of commercial entities. Other factors, such as the safety of schools and quality of education, must be con-
sidered in order to reasonably assess the District’s overall performance, particularly because of the limit-
ed resources available.

Fund Financial Statements

The District's fund financial statements provide a detailed short-term view of the District's operations,
focusing on its most significant or "major" funds. Certain funds are required by law while others are cre-
ated by legal agreements, such as bond covenants. The District establishes other funds to ensure and
demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements and prudent fiscal management. The
District has two kinds of funds - governmental funds and fiduciary funds.

Governmental Funds -The accounting for most of the District's basic services is included in the govern-
mental funds. The measurement focus and basis of accounting continue to be reported using the modified
accrual basis of accounting, which measures inflows and outflows of current financial resources and the
remaining balances at year-end that are available for spending. Furthermore, under this basis of account-
ing, changes in net spendable assets normally are recognized only to the extent that they are expected to
have a near-term impact. Inflows of financial resources are recognized only if they are available to liqui-
date liabilities of the current period. Similarly, future outflows are typically recognized only if they represent
a depletion of current financial resources. The District's major governmental funds are the General Fund,
Other Debt Service Funds, Section 1011.14 F.S. Loans Fund, Capital Improvement-Local Optional Millage
Levy (LOML) Funds, and Other Capital Project Funds. The differences in the amounts reported between
the fund statements and the government-wide statements are explained in the reconciliations provided on
District Pages 5 and 7.

Fiduciary Funds - The District is the trustee, or fiduciary, for resources held for the benefit of others, such
as the student activities fund and the pension fund. The District's fiduciary activities are reported in the
Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets on District Page 11 and the Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net
Assets on District Page 12. The resources accounted for in these funds are excluded from the government-
wide financial statements because these funds are not available to finance the District's operations.
Consequently, the District is responsible for ensuring that these resources are used only for their intended
purpose.

Notes to the Financial Statements
The notes provide disclosures and additional information that are essential to a full understanding of the
financial information presented in the government-wide and

fund financial statements.

Other Information

Fund Financial Statements
In addition to the basic financial statements and accompany-
ing notes, this report also provides certain required supple-
mentary information, as well as combining and individual fund
statements and schedules beginning on District Page 21.

Governmental Funds

Fiduciary Funds
Notes to the Financial Statemer
Other Information

Component Units

Component Units

The discretely presented component units included in this
report are those Charter Schools that meet the criteria as set —
forth by the Florida Department of Education. Please refer to
Note 19. P
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GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

Statement of Net Assets (Government-wide)

The following table provides a comparative analysis of the District's Net Assets for the fiscal years ended
June 30, 2008 and June 30, 2007.

CONDENSED STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS - GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
June 30, 2008 and 2007
(% in millions)

Difference %
Increase Increase
Categories 2007/08 2006/07 (Decrease) (Decrease)
Current and Other Assets $1,821.0 $1,657.5 $ 1635 9.9 %
Capital Assets, Net 4,531.5 3,933.1 598.4 152 %
Total Assets $ 6,352.5 $ 5,590.6 $ 7619 13.6 %
Current Liabilities $1,134.0 $ 750.2 $ 3838 51.2 %
Long-term Liabilities 3,450.2 3,048.1 402.1 13.2 %
Total Liabilities $4,584.2 $ 3,798.3 $ 785.9 20.7 %
Net Assets
Invested in Capital Assets,

Net of Related Debt $ 1,767.6 $ 1,713.0 $ 546 3.2 %
Restricted 356.2 342.8 134 39 %
Unrestricted (deficit) (355.5) (263.5) (92.0) (34.9) %

Total Net Assets $1,768.3 $1,792.3 $ (24.0) 1.3 %

The District’s net assets totaled $1.8 billion. Of this amount, $1.8 billion represents the portion the District

has invested in capital assets (land, buildings, furniture, fixtures & equipment), net of depreciation and

less any outstanding debt used to construct or acquire those assets. Restricted net assets in the amount

of $356.2 million are reported separately to show legal constraints, from debt covenants and enabling leg-

T ASSETS o !slation. The $(355.5) million unrestricted dgfi_cit

For Fiscal Year 2007/08 et in net assets reflects the shortfall the District

(8 in millions) 252 would face in the event it would have to liquidate

today all of its non-capital liabilities, including

compensated absences, at June 30, 2008. A

deficit in unrestricted net assets should not be

el considered, solely, as evidence of economic

$4.6 - financial difficulties, but rather as a result of dif-

ferent measurement focuses; long term com-
pared to short term perspectives.

Total
Net Assets

o With the implementation of GASB Statement

No. 34, the District is required to include all of its
capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation,
and of related debt, as well as all of its long term
liabilities. Consequently, these long term con-
siderations have a significant impact on the
resulting Net Assets.
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Statement of Activities (Government-wide)

The following table summarizes the changes in the District's Net Assets from its activities for the fiscal years

ended June 30, 2008 and June 30, 2007.

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS - GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

For Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2008 and 2007
($ in millions)

Revenues
Program Revenues:
Charges for Services
Operating Grants & Contributions
Capital Grants & Contributions
Total Program Revenues
General Revenues:
Ad Valorem Taxes
Grants & Contributions Not
Restricted to Specific Programs
Interest and Investments
Miscellaneous Revenue
Total General Revenues
Total Revenues
Expenses
Instructional Services
Instructional Support Services
Pupil Transportation
Operations & Maintenance of Plant
Food Service
School Administration
General Administration
Central Services
Capital Outlay
Administrative Technology Services
Debt Service
Other
Unallocated Depreciation
Total Expenses

Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets

Net Assets Beginning
Net Assets-Ending

2007/08

$ 67.4
126.3
135.4
320.1

1,855.8

1,614.9
56.6

15.5
35428
$3871.9

$ 2,070.4
371.3
94.3
432.7
146.1
190.8
38.2

69.9
216.5

1.2

117.2
41.8
105.5

$ 3,895.9

$ (24.0)

$1,792.3
1,768.3

2006/07

$ 69.2
126.8
107.5
303.5

1,638.2

1,695.3
71.8

21.4
34267
$3,730.2

$2,001.3
361.1
92.2
423.9
135.8
178.4
37.6

67.9
131.3

15

107.9
421
86.5

$ 3,667.5

$ 627

$ 1,729.6
1,792.3

Difference
Increase

%

Increase

(Decrease) (Decrease)

$  (1.8)

(:5)
27.9
(25.6)

217.6

(80.4)
(15.2)
(5.9)
116.1

$ 1417

$  69.1
10.2

2.1

8.8

10.3

12.4

6

2.0

85.2

(0.3)

9.3

(:3)

19.0

§ 2084

(2.6)%
(.4)%
26.0 %
8.4 %

13.3 %

4.7)%
(21.2)%
27.6 %
3.4%
3.8 %

3.5 %
2.8 %
2.3%
2.1%
7.6 %
7.0 %
1.6 %
2.9 %

64.9 %

(20.0)%
8.6 %
(7)%

22.0 %
6.2 %

The District’s total assets were $6,352.5 million and total liabilities were $4,584.2 million as of June 30,
2008. The most significant increases are reflected in Capital Assets and Long-term Liabilities as a result
of the District’'s financing activities to build additional student stations to comply with the Class Size

Reduction Constitutional Amendment.

The most significant increase in revenues is a result of higher property values that increased the collection

of Ad Valorem Taxes. Notable increase in expenses is mostly related to School Level Services.
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Governmental Activities

The Statement of Activities reports gross expenses, offsetting pro-
gram revenues and the resulting net expense (cost) by functions
for the current year. The net cost of each of the District’s functions
represents the expenses that must be subsidized by general rev-
enues, including tax dollars. As reflected in the Statement of
Activities, total expenses for governmental activities totaled
$3,790.4 million, excluding unallocated depreciation expense, of
which $329.1 million were financed by charges for services and
other program revenues. The resulting net costs of $3,461.3 mil-
lion, excluding unallocated depreciation expense, were financed
mainly by dollars and property taxes.

The table below, presents a comparative analysis of the cost and
the net cost of each of the District's functions: School Level Services include Instruction, Student Services
(counselors, psychologists, and visiting teachers), Transportation, Custodial and Maintenance (including
utilities), School Administration and Community Services; Instructional Support Services include Curriculum
Development and Staff Training; Business Services include Accounting, Budget, Payroll, Accounts Payable,
Cash and Debt Management, Purchasing, Personnel, Data Processing, Risk Management, and
Warehousing; General Administration; and Facilities Acquisition & Construction.

NET COST OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
For Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2008 and 2007
(% in millions)

Difference %

Increase Increase
2007/08 2006/07 (Decrease) (Decrease)

Total Cost of Services
School Level Services $2,976.0 $2,873.7 $ 102.3 3.6 %
Instructional Support Services 371.3 361.1 10.2 2.8 %
Business Services 209.1 197.5 11.6 59 %
General Administration 17.2 17.4 A .6 %
Facilities Acquisition & Construction 216.5 131.3 85.2 64.9 %
Total Cost of Services* $ 3,790.4 $ 3,5681.0 $  209.4 58 %

Net Cost of Services

School Level Services $2,728.3 $2,636.2 $ 921 35 %
Instructional Support Services 371.3 361.1 10.2 2.8 %
Business Services 196.4 185.0 11.4 6.2 %
General Administration 17.5 17.4 A .6 %
Facilities Acquisition & Construction 147.8 77.8 70.0 90.0 %
Net Cost of Services* $ 3,461.3 $3,277.5 $ 183.8 56 %

*Excluding unallocated depreciation expense

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE DISTRICT'S FUNDS

As noted earlier, the District uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-
related legal requirements. Financial information is presented separately in the Balance Sheet, and in the
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances for the District’'s major funds:
General Fund, Other Debt Service Funds, Section 1011.14 F.S. Loans Fund, Capital Improvement-Local
Optional Millage Levy (LOML) Funds, and Other Capital Project Funds. Financial information for the non-
major governmental funds is aggregated and presented in a single column. Individual fund data for each
of the non-major governmental funds is presented in the combining statements beginning on District
Page 21.
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GENERAL FUND

The General Fund is the primary operating fund for the District. Presented below
is an overall analysis of the General Fund as compared to the prior year.

CHANGES IN GENERAL FUND ACTIVITY
For Fiscal Years 2007/08 and 2006/07
(% in thousands)

Difference %

Increase Increase

Categories 2007/08 2006/07 (Decrease) (Decrease)

Revenue $ 2,687,111 $ 2,633,231 $ 53,880 2.0%
Other Financing Sources 210,586 156,570 54,016 34.5 %
Beginning Fund Balance 137,381 227,956 (90,575) (39.7)%
Total $ 3,035,078 $ 3,017,757 $ 17,321 0.6 %
Expenditures $ 2,988,336 $ 2,880,176 $ 108,160 3.8%
Other Financing Uses 14,382 200 14,182 7,091.0 %
Ending Fund Balance 32,360 137,381 (105,021) (76.4)%
Total $ 3,035,078 $ 3,017,757 $ 17,321 0.6 %

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the District. Revenues increased by $53.9 million or 2.0%.
This increase is mainly due to higher property tax revenues offset by lower state revenues. Expenditures
increased by $108.2 million or 3.8%. Payroll costs and fringe benefits represent the majority of the
increase.

Ending Fund Balance decreased by $105.0 million, as a result of funding reductions by the Florida
Legislature, increases in costs due to oil prices, and higher salaries and fringe benefits.

Beginning Ending
Fund Fund
Balance Expenditures Balance
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GENERAL FUND (continued)

Revenues By Source

Revenues - Overall revenues increased by $53.9 million or 2.0% as follows:
REVENUES BY SOURCE

For Fiscal Years 2007/08 and 2006/07
($ in thousands)

Difference %
Increase Increase
2007/08 2006/07 (Decrease) (Decrease)

Sources

Federal $ 18,821 $ 18,495 $ 326 1.8 %
State 1,287,430 1,378,960 (91,530) (6.6) %
Local 1,380,860 1,235,776 145,084 11.7 %
Total $ 2,687,111 $ 2,633,231 $ 53,880 20 %

Federal sources increased by $.3 million or 1.8%.

State sources decreased by $91.5 million or 6.6%. Funding by the Florida Education Finance Program
(FEFP) including Discretionary Lottery decreased by $139.0 million. This decrease was partially offset
by a $67.6 million increase in the Class Size Reduction Operating Funds. Voluntary Pre-K Program
and School Recognition programs declined by $2.8 and $9.0 million respectively. Workforce
Development funding declined by $5.2 million.

Local Sources increased by $145.1 million or 11.7%. The major increase resulted from an increase
in the collection of property taxes of $148.1 million. Interest on investments decreased by $7.6 million.

REVENUES BY SOURCE
Percentage of Increase/Decrease
For Fiscal Year 2007/08
($ in thousands)

Federal
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GENERAL FUND (continued)

Expenditures By Function

Expenditures - Overall expenditures increased by $108.2 million or 3.8% as follows:

EXPENDITURES BY FUNCTION
For Fiscal Years 2007/08 and 2006/07
($ in thousands)

Difference %
Increase Increase
2007/08 2006/07 (Decrease) (Decrease)

Functions
School Level Services $ 2,783,515 $ 2,680,856 $ 102,659 3.8%
Instructional Support Services 89,900 83,960 5,940 7.0 %
Business Services 91,631 89,018 2,613 2.9 %
School Board 6,694 6,579 115 1.7 %
General Administration 10,685 10,754 (69) (0.6) %
Facilities & Other Capital Outlay 5,911 9,009 (3,098) (34.4)%
Total $ 2,988,336 $ 2,880,176 $ 108,160 3.8%

Salaries and Fringe Benefits represent the most significant increases specifically as it relates to school
level expenditures. Overall salaries and fringe benefits increased by $98.8 million or 4.2%, primarily
due to an over allocation of teacher units to schools, and approved budgetary expenditure reductions
that did not materialize. In addition to the payroll costs, the District experienced increases in fuel and
energy costs.

EXPENDITURES BY FUNCTION
Percentage of Increase/Decrease
For Fiscal Year 2007/08
($ in thousands)

-

L]
School Instructional Facilities &
Level Support School Business General Other
Services Services Board Services Administration Capital Outlay
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OTHER DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

Other Debt Service Funds account for the accumulation of resources for, and the repayment of long-term debt
principal, interest, and related debt issuance costs for the Qualified Zone Academy Bonds (QZABSs), the
Master Equipment Lease, and the Certificates of Participation Series. At the end of the fiscal year, this fund
reflects a total fund balance of $21.5 million, all of which is reserved for the payment of debt.

SECTION 1011.14 F.S. LOANS FUND

On May 28, 2008, the District issued $150 million in Revenue Anticipation Notes, Series 2008B (the “Notes”)
pursuant to a resolution adopted by The School Board on April 16, 2008. Proceeds from the Notes will be
used to pay or reimburse the capital outlay funds or general fund for the cost of design, acquisition, construc-
tion and equipping of one or more of the educational facilities listed for the 2007-08 fiscal year Five Year
Facilities Work Program and retire a portion of the previously issued Revenue Anticipation Notes. The Notes
will be payable at maturity on January 30, 2009.

The $68.0 million deficit reported in this fund resulted from not recognizing the proceeds of the Notes as other
financing sources, but instead, as a short-term liability of this fund pursuant to Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles. The District plans to eliminate this deficit by issuing Certificates of Participation or other capital
sources during fiscal year 2008-09.

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT-LOCAL OPTIONAL MILLAGE LEVY (LOML)

Capital Improvement-Local Optional Millage Levy (LOML) funds are the primary source of revenue in the cap-
ital budget. The two-mill levy is authorized by Section 1011.71, Florida Statutes and allows school districts to
levy up to two-mills for capital outlay purposes.

Presented below is an overall analysis of the LOML funds activity as compared to prior year.

CHANGES IN LOML FUNDS ACTIVITY
For Fiscal Years 2007/08 and 2006/07
(% in thousands)

Difference %

Increase Increase

Categories 2007/08 2006/07 (Decrease) (Decrease)
Revenue $ 471,007 $ 413,524 $ 57,483 13.9 %
Other Financing Sources 2,482 - 2,482 -
Beginning Fund Balance 191,758 239,918 (48,160) (20.0)%
Total $ 665,247 $ 653,442 $ 11,805 1.8%
Expenditures $ 127,220 $ 149,278 $ (22,058) (14.8)%
Other Financing Uses 365,520 312,406 53,114 17.0 %
Ending Fund Balance 172,507 191,758 (19,251) (10.0)%
Total $ 665,247 $ 653,442 $ 11,805 1.8 %

BACIS TO SCHOOL
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OTHER CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS

Presented below is an overall analysis of the Other Capital Project Funds as compared to prior year.

CHANGES IN OTHER CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS ACTIVITY
For Fiscal Years 2007/08 and 2006/07
(% in thousands)

Difference %

Increase Increase
Categories 2007/08 2006/07 (Decrease) (Decrease)

Revenue $ 109,950 $ 83,510 $ 26,440 31.7%
Other Financing Sources 621,542 703,229 (81,687) (11.6) %
Beginning Fund Balance 719,361 709,212 10,149 1.4 %
Total $ 1,450,853 $1,495,951 $ _ (45,098) (3.0) %
Expenditures $ 649,936 $ 727,749 $ (77,813) (10.7) %
Other Financing Uses 96,724 48,841 47,883 98.0 %
Ending Fund Balance 704,193 719,361 (15,168) (2.1) %
Total $ 1,450,853 $ 1,495,951 $ _ (45,098) (3.0) %

Other Financing Sources reflect a significant decrease primarily due to reductions in proceeds received in
the prior year for the North Miami Construction Notes.

100
OTHER CAPITAL PROJECT FUND
90 Percentage of Increase/Decrease
| 80 For Fiscal Year 2007/08
($ in thousands)
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BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

Most District operations are funded in the General Fund. Approximately 80% of total General Fund rev-
enues were distributed to the District through the Florida Education Finance Program (FEFP), which
uses formulas to distribute state funds and an amount of local property taxes (i.e., required local effort)
established each year by the Florida Legislature. The purpose is to substantially equalize educational
funding among the sixty-seven school districts in Florida, irrespective of differences in wealth among
the districts.

Each school district retains its local property taxes, which is reported as local revenue. However, the
required local effort portion, which is approximately 88% of the property taxes recorded in the General
Fund, is deducted from the district revenue generated by the State FEFP formulas. The resulting net rev-
enue is reported as state revenue.

Total General Fund revenues during 2007-08 were $82.7 million less than the adopted budget as fol-
lows:

Federal funds were $1.2 million higher than anticipated due to an increase in the Medicaid and
Community Schools reimbursement.

Local revenues were $9.4 million or 7% lower than the adopted budget. The decrease in local revenues
from the adopted budget is primarily due to a reduction in property taxes ($16.6) million, offset by
increases in Universal Services (E-Rate) of $3.8 million, Community School Programs of $3.1 million,
and Indirect cost revenues of $1.4 million.

State funds were $74.5 million less than the adopted budget primarily due to FEFP budget reductions
resulting from lower state revenues (-$32.2 million in October and -$31.2 million in March), a transfer of
Charter School Capital Outlay revenue to the Capital Project Funds (-$13.2 million), school recogni-
tion(-$9.0 million), declining enrollment (-$6.9 million), and McKay Scholarships of (-$28.9 million), off-
set by revenue increases resulting from higher enrollment than projected (+15.4 million), prior year
FEFP adjustment (+$24.6 million), Discretionary Lottery Funds (+$3.4 million), and increases in various
state categoricals/miscellaneous state programs (+$3.5 million). It should be noted that the revenue
reduction for McKay Scholarships was offset by appropriations of approximately $27.0 million in the orig-
inal budget.

Other financing sources(uses) reflect $1.2 million in proceeds from the sale of capital assets, a $13.9
million transfer to the Funds for Charter School Capital Outlay, and a transfer of $11.9 million to the Food
Service Fund that were not anticipated in the adopted budget.

Payroll costs (salaries and employee benefits) were $102.3 million more than the adopted budget, pri-
marily due to school based decisions $41.3 million to increase hourly, overtime, and temporary instruc-
tors, as well as an over allocation of teacher units to schools.

As of June 30, 2008, of the $32.4 million ending fund balance approximately $8.3 million represents
unexpended, categorical funds, and $16.9 million represents purchase orders outstanding, both of which
must be rebudgeted. The remaining $7.2 million includes contingency of $5.0 million with $2.2 million of
limited rebudgets.

In the Tentative FY 2008-09 budget, the District recognized revenue reductions in excess of $74.0 mil-
lion and made budgetary reductions to manage increases in costs that exceed $132.0 million. In the
future the District will continue to review the budget focusing on maintaining essential educational
services as we anticipate continuing enrollment and revenue declines.
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CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMI

NISTRATION

Capital Assets - At June 30, 2008, the District had $4,572,883 (in thousands) invested in different cate-

gories of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, as shown in the table below.

CAPITAL ASSET ACTIVITY
At June 30, 2008 and 2007
($ in thousands)

Difference

Increase/

Categories 2007/08 2006/07 (Decrease)
Land $ 318,397 $ 272,547 $ 45,850
Land Improvements 175,183 107,876 67,307
Construction in Progress* 641,205 757,694 (116,489)
Building and Improvements 3,193,070 2,563,302 629,768
Furniture, Fixtures & Equipment 157,738 135,144 22,594
Motor Vehicles 87,290 96,545 (9,255)
Total $ 4,572,883 $ 3,933,108 $ 639,775

*Includes software development under Capital Leases.

%
Increase
(Decrease)

16.8 %
62.4 %
(15.4) %
24.6 %
16.7 %
(9.6) %

16.3 %

The District continues to pursue innovative financing programs to keep pace with the accelerated con-
struction program required to alleviate overcrowding, meet the Class Size Reduction constitutional

amendment and renovate aging schools.

Detailed information reflecting the District's capital asset balances and activity for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2008 is provided in Note 4 to the Financial Statements.
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CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION (continued)

Debt Administration - The following table represents the changes in the District’'s outstanding long-term
liabilities at fiscal year end.

CHANGES IN LONG TERM LIABILITIES
At June 30, 2008 and 2007
(% in thousands)

Difference %
Increase/ Increase
Categories 2007/08 2006/07 (Decrease) (Decrease)
Notes Payable $ 124,514 124,763 $ (249) (0.2) %
Bonds Payable 488,495 $ 553,583 (65,088) (11.8) %

Certificates of Participation Payable

by The Foundation 2,574,830 2,068,898 505,932 245 %
Capital Leases 132,751 97,153 35,598 36.6 %
Insurance Claims Payable 118,118 127,237 (9,119) (7.2) %
Retirement Incentive Benefits 3,139 5,260 (2,121) (40.3) %
Compensated Absences Payable 274,451 260,457 13,994 54 %
Total $ 3,716,298 $ 3,237,351 $ 478,947 148 %

The most significant changes are reflected with an increase in Certificates of Participation of $505.9 mil-
lion. During the fiscal year the District issued $538.3 million in Certificates of Participation (COP) Series
2008B for the construction of new capital projects.

The District also issued $233.4 million forward refunding COP Series 2008A for the purpose of refunding
$236.9 million of the outstanding COP Series 1998A and 1998C.

Additionally, during the fiscal year the District converted and privately placed under a Purchase Agreement
delineating pre-approved terms, $278.4 million auction rate COP Series 2001B, 2002A, 2002B, & 2007C.




Exhibit A-1
Page 1-O

ECONOMIC FACTORS

During fiscal year 2007-08, the economic conditions in Florida deteriorated significantly, resulting in
unprecedented uncertainty regarding budgets at all levels of government in the state. As state revenues
declined, the Florida Legislature reduced funding for public schools two times during the fiscal year. As fis-
cal year 2008-09 opens there are strong indications that state revenues are again lower than anticipated in
the current state budget and that the legislature will have to rebalance the budget in a future special ses-
sion. Currently, it is unclear to what extent state reserves will be used to balance the budget in order to
minimize reductions in appropriations.

A number of state constitutional amendments were approved by a Taxation and Budget Reform
Commission that meets every 20 years and may be on the ballot at the November 2008 general election.
Several of these amendments could adversely affect funding of public schools in the state and are being
challenged in court by opponents of the amendments. One of the amendments would eliminate most of
the property tax revenue in school districts’ General Funds and replace it with state revenue sources to be
identified by the Legislature. This amendment has been removed from the ballot by a circuit court judge
who declared the ballot language to be misleading. However, proponents of this amendment plan to appeal
the decision to the Florida Supreme Court. Amendments to the Florida Constitution must be approved by
60% of the voters. Therefore, the outcome of these amendments is uncertain.

CONTACTING MANAGEMENT

The District’s financial statements are designed to present citizens, taxpayers, investors, and creditors with
a general overview of the District's finances and to show the District's accountability for the money it
receives. Additional information can be requested at:

The School Board of Miami-Dade County
School Board Administration Building
Office of the Controller
1450 N.E. 2nd Avenue
Room 664
Miami, Florida 33132
or visit our website at:

http://www.dadeschools.net
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DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF MIAMI DADE COUNTY

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
June 30, 2008
Primary Government
Account Governmental Business-type Component
ASSETS Number Activities Activities Total Units
Cash and Cash Equivalents {110 181,019,243.23 181,019,243.23 34,312,365.57
Investments 1160 1,283,185,023.31 1,283,185,023.31 197,161.22
Taxes Receivable, Net 1120 154,193,544 .29 154,193,544.29 0.00
Accounts Receivable, Net 1130 26,028,740.33 26,028,740.33 1,285,843.53
Interest Receivable 1170 9,952,595.19 9,952,595.19
Due from Reinsurer 1180
Deposits Receivable 1210 3,000.00 3,000.00 301,606.86
Due from Other Agencies 1220 101,912,834.65 101,912,834.65 3,259,504.99
Internal Balances
Inventory 1150 19,586,579.34 19,586,579.34
Prepaid Items 1230 22,723,695.15 22,723,695.15 2,262,441.64
Restricted Assets:
Cash with Fiscal Agent 1114
Deferred Charges:
Issuance Costs 22,399,346.41 22,399,346 41
Noncurrent Assets:
Other Post-employment Benefits Obligation (asset) 1410
Capital Assets:
Land 1310 318,396,737.80 318,396,737.80 986,359.00
Land Improvements - Nondepreciable 1315 175,182,806.70 175,182,806.70
Construction in Progress 1360 621,357,825.75 621,357,825.75 218,424.09
Software Develdpment Under Capital Leases 1362 19,009,452.00 19,009,452.00
Improvements Other Than Buildings 1320 2,060,832.61
Less Accumulated Depreciation 1329 {272,235.97)
Buildings and Fixed Equipment 1330 4,182,899,435.95 4,182,859,435.95 10,120,460.16
Less Accumulated Depreciation 1339 (995,717,907.28) (995,717,907.28) (4,212,121.69)
Furniture, Fixtures and Equipment 1340 275,201,770.70 275,201,770.70 19,370,423.49
Less Accumulated Depreciation 1349 (169,629,073.80) (169,629,073.80) (8,994,256.98)
Motor Vehicles 1350 95,544,656.91 95,544,656.91 14,280.05
Less Accumulated Depreciation 1359 (52,106,171.76) (52,106,171.76) (4,760.02)
Property Under Capital Leases 1370 62,593,108.09 62,593,108.09
Less Accumulated Depreciation 1379 {8,466,464.59) (8,466,464.5%)
Audio Visual Materials 1381 399,957.97 399,957.97 438,691.90
Less Accumulated Depreciation 1388 (233,881.14) (233,881.14) {200,596.66)
Computer Software 1382 11,613,799.19 11,613,799.19 480,597 89
Less Accumulated Amortization 1389 {(4,522,512.59) {4,522,512.59) (347,270.77)
Total Assets 6,352,528,141.80 6,352,528,141.80 61,277,750.91
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
LIABILITIES
Salaries and Wages Payable 2110 143,088,245.43 143,088,245.43 5,289,397.19
| Payroll Deductions and Withholdings 2170 38,130,093.51 38,130,093.51 17,474.26
Accounts Payable 2120 121,974,546.16 121,974,546.16 2,284,272.28
Construction Contracts Payable 2140 36,357,749.93 36,357,749.93 36,209.00
Construction Contracts Retainage Payable 2150 63,538,510.03 63,538,510.03
Due to Fiscal Agent 2240
Accrued Interest on Sale of Bonds 2210 44,385,853.72 44,385,853.72
Deposits Payable 2220 6,760.00 6,760.00 537,648.06
Due to Other Agencies 2230 7,436,203.33 7,436,203.33 287,255.67
Sales Tax Payable 2260
Estimated Liability for Arbitrage Rebate 2280 10,633,211.44 10,633,211.44
Uneamned Revenue 2410 6,605,954.26 6,605,954.26
Deferred Liability 24,282,360.75 24,282,360.75
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Portion Due Within One Year:
Tax Anticipation and Section 1011.13, F.S., Notes Payable 2250 371,229,800.00 371,229,800.00
Notes Payable 2310 514,750.00 514,750.00 651,165.90
Bonds Payable 2320 76,104,583.00 76,104,583.00
Obligations Under Capital Leases 2315 21,554,125.67 21,554,125.67 117,560.88
Liability for Compensated Absences 2330 16,900,393.50 16,900,393.50
Certificates of Participation Payable 2340 118,129,488.38 118,129,488.38
Estimated Liability for Long-Term Claims 2350 33,051,540.69 33,051,540.69
Other Post-employment Benefits Obligation 2360 0.00
Estimated PECO Advance Payable 2370 0.00
Unearned Revenue 2410 100,352.46 100,352.46 117,540.00
Estimated Liability for Arbitrage Rebate 2280
Portion Due After One Year:
Notes Payable 2310 124,000,000.00 124,000,000.00 3,825,000.00
Bonds Payable 2320 412,390,416.54 412,390,416.54
Obligations Under Capital Leases 2315 111,196,568.53 111,196,568.53 18,350.73
Liability for Comp d Absences 2330 260,689,150.25 260,689,150.25
Certificates of Participation Payable 2340 2,456,700,338.61 2,456,700,338.61
Estimated Liability for Long-Term Claims 2350 85,067,000.00 85,067,000.00 175,000.00
Other Post-employment Benefits Obligation 2360 13,451,912.00 13,451,912.00
Estimated PECO Advance Payable 2370
Unearned Revenue 2410 179,795.89 179,795.89 237,961.00
Estimated Liability for Arbitrage Rebate 2280
Total Liabilities 4,597,699,704.08 4,597,699,704.08 13,594,834 97
NET ASSETS
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt 2770 1,767,553,833.14 1,767,553,833.14 20,520,215.87
Restricted For:
Categorical Carryover Programs 2780 8,291,140.00 8,291,140.00 46,037.42
Debt Service 2780 57,524,921.34 57,524,921.34
Capital Projects 2780 288,749,459.13 288,749,459.13 733,447.68
Special Revenues 2780 512,869.42 512,869.42
QOther Purposes 2780 1,156,989.24 1,156,989.24 15,942.14
Unrestricted 2790 {368,960,774.55) (368,960,774.55) 26,367,272.83
Total Net Assets 1,754,828,437.72 1,754,828,437.72 47,682,915.94

Total Liabilities and Net Assets

6,352,528,141 80

6,352,528,141.80

61,277,750.91

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF MIAMI-DADE COUNTY
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

Total Fund Balances - Governmental Funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets are different as a result of:

Capital assets used in activities are not financial resources and therefore are not
reported as assets in the governmental funds.

Capital assets  $
Accumulated depreciation

5,762,199,551.06
(1,230,676,011.16)

Property taxes receivable will be collected this year, but are not available soon
enough to pay for the current period's expenditures, and therefore are not
recorded as an asset in the governmental funds.

Deferred charges for issuance costs are not financial resources and therefore are
not reported as assets in the governmental funds.

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and therefore

are not reported as liabilities in the governmental funds. Long-term liabilities at
year-end consist of the following:

Bonds Payable $

Capital Leases

Compensated Absences

Other Post-employment Benefits Obligation

Salaries Payable

Notes Payable

Certificates of Participation

Claims Payable

Interest Payable

(488,494,999.54)
(132,750,694.20)
(268,657,150.25)
(13,451,912.00)
(2,125,000.00)
(124,514,750.00)
(2,574,829,826.99)
(115,357,106.00)
(30,323,313.59)

Unearned revenue on Forward Purchase Agreement and other deferred liabilities
are treated as proceeds in the governmental funds, but are deferred to future
periods in the Statement of Net Assets (amortized over the life of the debt.)

Total Net Assets - Governmental Activities

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

ESE 145

$

Exhibit C-2
District Page 5

962,335,140.54

4,531,523,539.90

13,637,672.54

22,399,346.41

(3,750,504,752.57)

(24,562,509.10)

$

1,754,828,437.72
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DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF MIAMI-DADE COUNTY

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

Total Net Change in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities are different as a result of:

Property taxes that are not collected within 60 days are not considered available, and therefore
are not recorded as revenues. However, for the government-wide statements property taxes are
recorded when there is an enforceable lien. Additionally, the governmental funds reflect revenues
that correspond to the prior year.
Prior year revenues recorded this year
Revenues not recorded this year that the government has legal claim to

The net effect of various miscellaneous transactions involving capital assets (i.e., change in
capitalization threshold, sales, disposals, recoveries and donations} is to decrease net assets.

Capital outlay disbursements to purchase or build capital assets are reported as expenditures in
the governmental funds. In the Statement of Net Assets, these costs are capitalized and
depreciated over their estimated useful lives. In the Statement of Activities the depreciation is
reflected as an expense for the period.
Capital outlay expenditures for the fiscal year
Depreciation expense for the fiscal year

Some of the capital assets acquired during the year were financed with debt instruments. The
amount financed by these instruments are recorded as other financing sources in the
governmental funds, however, in the government-wide statements they are recorded as additions
to long-term liabilites. Proceeds from debt instruments were as follows:
Proceeds from State Board of Education Capital Outlay Bonds
Premium on State Board of Education Capital Outlay Bonds
Proceeds from refunding of Certificates of Participation
Premium on refunding of Certificates of Participation
Proceeds from issuance of Certificates of Participation
Premium on issuance of Certificates of Participation
Proceeds from conversion of Certificates of Participation
Proceeds from Loans/Leases

The governmental funds only include those liabilities that will be paid with current financial
resources. Expenses recorded in the Statement of Activities exceed the amount recorded in the
governmental funds due to the different measurement focus used. Additionally, the governmentai
funds reflect expenses that correspond to prior year.
Prior year expenses
Other post-employment benefits obligation
Accrued compensated absences and additional insurance claims payable

Repayment of debt principal is reflected as an expenditure in the governmental funds, however, in
the Statement of Net Assets it is reflected as a reduction of liabilities and does not affect the
Statement of Activities.

Repayment of debt principal and unamortized loss on advance refunding and conversions is
reflected as an other financing use in the governmental funds, however, in the Statement of Net
Assets it is reflected as a reduction of liabilities and does not affect the Statement of Activities.

issuance cost related to the sale of Certificates of Participation and General Obligation School
Bonds are reported as expenditures in the governmental funds however, these costs are
capitalized and amortized over the life of the bonds. In the Statement of Activities, amortization is
recorded as additional interest expense for the period.
Issuance Costs
Amortization of issuance costs

Interest on long-term debt differs from the amount reported in the governmental funds. in the
governmental funds, interest on long-term debt is recorded as an expenditure when due and
payable. In the Statement of Activities, interest is recorded as it accrues. In addition, premiums
and deferred revenue are amortized over the life of the debt, and are recorded as a reduction of
interest expense on the Statement of Activities. Losses incurred as a result of advanced
refundings, are also amortized over the life of the debt and are recorded as an increase to interest
expense on the Statement of Activities.
Accrued interest payable
Amortization of premium on Certificates of Participation (COPs)
Amortization of premium on General Obligation School Bonds (GOBs)
Amortization of Deferred Revenue on Forward Purchase Agreement
Amortization of loss related to advance refunding of COPs
Amortization of loss related to advance refunding of GOBs
Prior year interest paid during current fiscai year

Total Change in Net Assets of Governmental Activities
The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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(8,669,518.46)

747,621,743.51
(141,951,807.71)

(8,425,000.00)
(304,186.05)
(233,400,000.00)
(14,150,750.50)
(538,305,000.00)
(17,707,033.70)
(278,415,000.00)

70,371,066.34)

10,832,750.00
(13,451,912.00)

(10,388,982.33)

8,922,591.14
(1,551,801.98)

(30,323,313.59)
6,790,352.99
3,780,228.04

171,609.36
(4,136,898.85)
(472,806.62)

36,601,786.50
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(141,200,929.43)

4,968,154.08

(6,974,174.34)

605,669,835.80

(1,161,078,036.59)

(13,008,144.33)

130,633,907.68

523,727,155.06

7,370,788.16

12,410,857.83

(37,480,485.08)
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DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF MIAMI DADE COUNTY

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

MAJOR AND NONMAJOR COMPONENT UNITS

June 30, 2008
Total
Account Total Nonmajor Component
ASSETS Number| Comp: Units Units
Cash and Cash Equivalents 1110 34,312,365.57 34,312,365.57
In 1160 197,161.22 197,161.22
Taxes Receivable, Net 1120
Accounts Receivable, Net 1130 1,285,843.53 1,285,843.53
Interest Receivable 1170
Due from Rei 1180
Deposits Receivable 1210 301,606.86 301,606.86
Due from Other Agencies 1220 3,259,504.95 3,259,504.99
Internat Bal
Inventory 1150
Prepaid Items 1230 2,262,441.64 2,262,441.64
Restricted Assets:
Cash with Fiscal Agent 1114
Deferred Charges:
Issuance Costs
Noncurrent assets:
Other Post-employment Benefits Obligation (asset) 1410
Capital Assets:
Land 1310 986,359.00 986,359.00
Land Improvements - Nondepreciable 1315
Construction in Progress 1360 218,424.09 218,424.09
Improvements Other Than Buildings 1320 2,060,832.61 2,060,832.61
Less Accumulated Depreciation 1329 (272,235.97) (272,235.97)
Buildings and Fixed Equip 1330 10,120,460.16 10,120,460.16
Less Accumulated Depreciation 1339 (4,212,121.69) {4,212,121.69)
Furniture, Fixtures and Equipment 1340 19,370,423.49 19,370,423.49
Less A lated Depreciation 1349 (8,994,256.98) (8,994,256.98)
Motor Vehicles 1350 14,280.05 14,280.05
Less Accumulated Depreciation 1359 (4,760.02) (4,760.02)
Property Under Capital Leases 1370
Less Accumulated Depreciation 1379
Audio Visual Materials 1381 438,691.90 438,691.90
Less Accumulated Depreciation 1388 (200,596.66) {200,596.66)
Computer Software 1382 480,597.89 480,597.89
Less Accumulated Amortization 1389 (347,270.77) (347,270.77)
Total Assets 61,277,750.91 61,277,750.91
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
LIABILITIES
Salaries and Wages Payable 2110 5,289,397.19 5,289,397.19
Payroll Deductions and Withholdings 2170 17,474.26 17,474.26
Accounts Payable 2120 2,284,272.28 2,284,272.28
Construction Contracts Payable 2140 36,209.00 36,209.00
Due to Fiscal Agent 2240
Accrued Interest 2210
Deposits Payable 2220 537,648.06 537,648.06
Due to Other Agencies 2230 287,255.67 287,255.67
Sales Tax Payable 2260
Estimated Unpaid Claims 2271
Estimated Liability for Claims Adj 2272
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Portion Due Within One Year:
Section 1011.13, F.S., Notes Payable 2250
Notes Payable 2310 651,165.90 651,165.90
Bonds Payable 2320
Obligations Under Capital Leases 2315 117,560.88 117,560.88
Liability for Comp d Absences 2330
Certificates of Participation Payable 2340
Estimated Liability for Long-Term Claims 2350
Other Post-employment Benefits Obligation 2360
Estimated PECO Advance Payable 2370
Deferred Revenue 2410 117,540.00 117,540.00
Estimated Liability for Arbitrage Rebate 2280
Portion Due After One Year:
Notes Payable 2310 3,825,000.00 3,825,000.00
Bonds Payable 2320
Obligations Under Capital Leases 2315 18,350.73 18,350.73
Liability for Comp d At 2330
Certificates of Participation Payable 2340
Estimated Liability for Long-Term Claims 2350 175,000.00 175,000.00
Other Post-employment Benefits Obligation 2360
Estimated PECO Advance Payable 2370
Deferred Revenue 2410 237,961.00 237,961.00
Estimated Liability for Arbitrage Rebate 2280
Total Liabilities 13,594,834.97 13,594,834.97
NET ASSETS
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt 20,520,215.87 20,520,215.87
Restricted For:
Categorical Carryover Programs 2710 46,037.42 46,037.42
Debt Service 2750
Capital Projects 733,447.68 733,447.68
QOther Purposes 15,942.14 15,942.14
Unrestricted 26,367,272.83 26,367,272.83
Total Net Assets 47,682,915.94 47,682,915.94

Total Liabilities and Net Assets

61,277,750.91

61,277,750.81

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

ESE 145
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EXHIBIT D-1 DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD Exh. D1
OF MIAMI-DADE COUNTY Dist. Pg 18
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

A. Reporting Entity

The School Board of Miami-Dade County, Fiorida (the "School Board", “Board”, or the "District") is
composed of nine members elected from single-member districts within the legal boundary of
Miami-Dade, Florida (the “County”). The appointed Superintendent of Schools is the executive
officer of the Board. The School Board is part of the state system of public education under the
general direction of the State Board of Education and is financially dependent on state support.
However, the Board is considered a primary government for financial reporting purposes because
it is directly responsible for the operation and control of District schools within the framework of
applicable state law and State Board of Education rules.

The general operating authority of the School Board and the Superintendent is contained in
Chapters 1000 through 1013, Florida Statutes. Pursuant to Section 1010.01, Florida Statutes, the
Superintendent of Schools is responsible for keeping records and accounts of all financial
transactions in the manner prescribed by the State Board of Education.

The accompanying financial statements include those of the District (the primary government) and
those of its component units. Component units are legally separate organizations which should
be included in the District's financial statements because of the nature and significance of their
relationship with the primary government.

The decision to include a potential component unit in the District’s reporting entity is based on the
criteria stated in Government Accounting Standards Board (“GASB") Statement No. 14, The
Financial Reporting Entity, as amended by GASB Statement No. 39, Defermining Whether Certain
Organizations are Component Units. The application of these criteria provides for identification of
any entities that the Board is financially accountable for and other organizations that the nature
and significance of their relationship with the School Board are such that exclusion would cause
the District’s basic financial stalements to be misleading or incomplete.

Blended Component Units

The Miami-Dade County School Board Foundation, Inc. (the *Foundation™), a Florida not-for-profit
corporation, was created solely to facilitate financing for the acquisition and construction of District
school facilities and related costs. The members of the School Board serve as the Board of the
Foundation, therefore, the School Board is considered financially accountable for the Foundation.
The financial activities of the Foundation have been blended (reported as if it were part of the
District) with those of the District.

Discretely Presented Component Units

All charter schools are recognized as public schools within the District, as such, charter schools
are funded on the same basis as the District. Additionally, Florida Statutes Section 1002.33,
states that the School Board shall monitor revenues and expenditures of the charter schools.
Charter schools are funded from public funds based on membership, and can also be eligible for
grants in accordance with the state and federal guidelines, including food service and capital
outlay. Additionally, all students enrolled in charter schools are included in the District’s total
enrollment. Charter schools can accept private donations and incur debt in the operation of the
school for which the charter school is responsible.
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1.

DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD EXHIBIT D1
OF MIAMI-DADE COUNTY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued:

A.

Reporting Entity — continued

A total of sixty-three charter schools were approved to operate during fiscal year 2007-08.
All of the charter schools are considered component units of the District or another legal
entity. For financial reporting purposes, fifty-seven of the charter schools should be included
in the financial statements of the District as discretely presented component units because of
their fiscal dependency on the District. (See Note 19)

On January 16, 2008, the School Board authorized the establishment of the Foundation for
Education innovation, a Florida not-for-profit 501(c)(3) Direct Support Organization (DSO).
The DSO was formed to support academic achievement by receiving, holding, investing, and
administering property and making expenditures for the benefit of public education programs
in the District. The DSO will be organized and operated exclusively in accordance with
School Board Rule 6GX13-1B-1.08, Schoo! Board Direct-Support Organization, and Florida
Statute 1001.453, Direct Support Organization.

Basis of Presentation

The District's accounting policies conform with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States applicable to state and local governmental units. Accordingly, the basic
financial statements include both the government-wide and fund financial statements.

Government-wide Statements - The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of
Activities present information about the financial activities of the District as a whole, and its
component units, excluding fiduciary activities. Eliminations have been made from the
statements to remove the “doubling-up” effect of interfund activity.

The Statement of Activities reports expenses identified by specific functions, offset by
program revenues, resulting in a measurement of “net (expense) revenue” for each of the
District's functions. Program revenues that are used to offset these expenses include
charges for services, such as food service and tuition fees; operating grants, such as the
National Schoo! Lunch Program, Federal Grants, and other state allocations; and capital
grants specific to capital outlay. In addition, revenues not classified as program revenues
are shown as general revenues.

Fund Financial Statements - The fund financial statements provide information about the
District’'s funds, including fiduciary funds. Separate statements for governmental and
fiduciary funds are presented. The emphasis of the fund financial statements is on the major
funds which are presented in a separate column with all non-major funds aggregated in a
single column.

The District reports the following major governmental funds:

General Fund is the District's primary operating fund and accounts for all financial resources
of the District, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

Other Debt Service Funds — account for and report on the accumulation of resources for,
and the payment, of general long-term debt principal, interest, and related debt issuance
costs for the Qualified Zone Academy Bonds (QZABs), the Master Equipment Lease, and
the Certificates of Participation.




EXHIBIT D1 DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD Exh. D1
OF MIAMI-DADE COUNTY Dist. Pg 18-B
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued:

B. Basis of Presentation - continued

Section 1011.14 F.S. 1 cans Fund accounts for and reports on proceeds received from the
issuance of the Revenue Anticipation Notes, used to pay or reimburse the capital outlay
funds for the cost of acquisition, construction and equipping modular classrooms.

Capital Improvement - Local Optional Millage Levy (LOML) Funds account for and report on
funds levied by the school district, as authorized by Capital Improvement Section, 1011.71,
Florida Statutes, for capital outlay purposes.

Other Capital Project Funds account for resources used in site acquisition, construction,
renovation and remodeling of educational facilities. Included in these funds are Certificates
of Participation, Impact Fees, Classrooms First, Effort Index Grants, Class Size Reduction,
Master Equipment Lease and The Qualified Zone Academy Bond Certificates of
Participation.

The District also reports the following fiduciary funds:

Agency Fund — School's Internal Fund accounts for resources of the schools’ Internal Fund
which is used to administer monies collected at the schools in connection with school,
student athletics, class, and club activities.

Pension Trust Fund accounts for resources used to finance the District's Supplemental Early
Retirement Plan.

C. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when
earned and expenses are recorded when the liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of
related cash flows. Revenues from non-exchange transactions are reported according to
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 33, Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Non-Exchange Transactions, as amended by GASB Statement No.
36, Recipient Reporting for Certain Shared Non-Exchange Revenues, they include, taxes,
grants and denations. On the accrual basis, revenue from property taxes is recognized in
the fiscal year for -which the taxes are levied. Revenues from grants and donations are
recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under the modified
accrual basis of accounting, revenues except for certain grant revenues, are recognized
when susceptible to accrual, that is, when they become measurable and available.
"Measurable" means the amount of the transaction can be determined; "available” means
collectible within the current period or soon thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the
current period. Property taxes, interest and certain General Fund revenues are the significant
revenue sources considered susceplible {o accrual. The School Board considers property
taxes as available if they are collected within 60 days after fiscal year-end. Florida Education
Finance Program revenues are recognized when received. A one-year availability period is
used for revenue recognition for all other governmental fund revenues. When grant terms
provide that the expenditure of funds is the prime factor for determining eligibility for federal,
state, and other grant funds, revenue is recognized at the time the expenditure is made.
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DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD EXHIBIT D1
OF MIAMI-DADE COUNTY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued:

C.

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting - continued

Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, expenditures are generally recognized when
the related fund liability is incurred. The principal exceptions to this general rule are: (1)
interest on general long-term debt is recognized as expenditures when due; and (2)
expenditures related to liabilities reported as general long-term debt are recognized when
due.

The Pension Trust Fund is accounted for on a flow of economic resources measurement
focus. W.ith this measurement focus, all assets and all liabilities associated with the
operation of this fund are included on the Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets. The Statement
of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets presents increases (revenues) and decreases
(expenses) in fund equity (total net assets).

New Pronouncements

GASB 49, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pollution Remediation Obligations,
provides guidance on how to calculate and report the costs and obligations associated with
pollution cleanup efforts. The requirements of the new statement become effective for fiscal
periods beginning after December 15, 2007.

GASB 50, Pension Disclosures. This statement more closely aligns the financial reporting
requirements for pensions with those for other postemployment benefits. The requirements
of the new statement become effective for fiscal periods beginning after June 15, 2007
except for the requirement for plans that use the aggregate actuarial cost method to present
a schedule of funding progress using the entry age actuarial cost method which is effective
for the actuarial valuations as of June 15, 2007.

GASB 51, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Intangible Assets. This statement
establishes accounting and financial reporting requirements for intangible assets including
easements, water rights, timber rights, patents, trademarks, and computer software. The
requirements of this Statement are effective for financial statements for periods beginning
after June 15, 2009.

Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Investments

The District maintains an accounting system in which substantially all general School Board
cash, investments, and accrued interest are recorded and maintained in a separate group of
accounts. Investment income is allocated based on the proportionate balances of each
fund's equity in pooled cash and investments. The cash and investment pool is avaitable for
all funds, except the State Board of Education Bonds, Certificates of Participation and other
debt related funds requiring separate accounts.

Cash deposits are held by banks qualified as public depositories under Florida law. All
deposits are insured by federal depository insurance and/or collateralized with securities heid
in Florida's multiple financial institution collateral pool as required by Florida Statutes,
Chapter 280. Cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand
deposits, non-marketable time deposits, money market accounts and funds.

Investments are carried at fair value and include U.S. Agency obligations, commercial paper,
and Money Market Mutual Funds. Pension Trust Fund investments are recorded at fair
value and include: commercial paper, corporate bonds, money market funds and corporate
stocks.



EXHIBIT D1 DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD Exh. D-1
OF MIAMI-DADE COUNTY Dist. Pg 18-D
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued:

F. Inventory

Inventories consist of expendable supplies held for consumption in the course of the
District's operations. Inventories are stated at cost, principally on a weighted average cost
basis. Commodities from the United States Department of Agriculture are stated at their fair
market value as determined at the time of donation by the Florida Department of Agriculture
and Consumer Services. Commodities inventory is accounted for using the “purchases”
method that expense inventory when acquired and inventories on hand at fiscal year end are -
reported as an asset and a reservation of fund balance. Non-commodity inventory is
accounted for under the consumption method and as such is recorded as an expenditure
when used. Since inventories of commodities also involve purpose restrictions they are
presented as restricted net assets in the government-wide statement of net assets.

G. Due From Other Governments or Agencies

Amounts due to the District by other governments or agencies are for grants or programs
under which the services have been provided to the community by the District.

H. Other Assets

Other assets consist mainly of prepaid expenses which are recognized upon the receipt of
the goods or services that were received but not consumed at year-end. The expenditure
will be recorded when the asset is used. Accordingly, prepaid expenses are equally offset by
a fund balance reserve account.

I Restricted Net Assets

Certain proceeds from bonds and Certificates of Participation (COP) issuances, as well as
resources for debt service payments are classified as restricted net assets on the Statement
of Net Assets because their use is limited by applicable bond covenants and restrictions.

When both restricted and unrestricted net assets are available for a specific purpose, it is the
District's policy to use restricted net assets first, until exhausted, before using unrestricted
resources.
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DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD EXHIBIT D-1
OF MIAMI-DADE COUNTY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued:

J.

Capital Assets

Capital assets which include, land, buildings, building improvements, furniture, fixtures and
equipment, and motor vehicles are reported in the Statement of Net Assets in the
government-wide statements. The District’s capitalization threshold for furniture, fixtures and
equipment is $1,000 or greater. Building improvements, additions, and other capital outlays
that significantly extend the useful life of an asset are capitalized. Other costs incurred for
repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred. Assets are recorded at historical cost.
Assets purchased under capital leases are recorded at cost, which approximates fair value at
acquisition date and does not exceed the present value of future minimum lease payments.
Donated assets are recorded at the fair market value at the time of receipt. Certain costs
incurred in connection with developing or obtaining internal use software are capitalized and
reflected in computer software development under capital leases in the Statement of Net
Assets in the government-wide statements.

Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method based con the following
estimated useful lives:

Useful Life (Years)

Buildings and Improvements 20-50
Furniture, Fixtures and Equipment 5-20

Vehicles 7-18

When capital assets are sold or disposed of, the related cost and accumulated depreciation
are removed from the accounts, and the resulting gain or loss is recorded in the government-
wide statements.

Long-Term Debt and Compensated Absences

The government-wide financial statements report long-term liabilities or obligations that are
expected to be paid in the future. Long-term liabilities reported include bonds, Certificates of
Participation (COPs), capital leases, vested vacation and sick pay benefits, estimate for
anticipated non-vested sick pay benefits, and Post Retirement Benefits payable in future
years. Bond premiums/discounts are amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective-
interest method; while deferred loss on advance refundings and issuance costs are
amortized over the shorter of the remaining life of the refunded bonds or the life of the new
bonds in a systematic and rationale method, which approximates the effective-interest
methed.

In the fund financial statements, bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs
are recognized in the period they are issued. Proceeds, premiums, and discounts are
reported as other financing sources. Issuance costs, are reported as debt service
expenditures.



EXHIBIT D1 DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD Exh. D-1
OF MIAMI-DADE COUNTY Dist. Pg 18-F
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued:

L. State Revenue Sources

Revenues from state sources for current operations are primarily from the Florida Education
Finance Program (FEFP), administered by the Florida Department of Education (FDOE),
under the provisions of Section 1011.62, Florida Statutes. The District files reports on full-
time equivalent (FTE) student membership with the FDOE. The FDOE accumulates
information from these reports and calculates the allocation of FEFP funds to the District.
After review and verification of FTE reports and supporting documentation, the FDOE may
adjust subsequent fiscal period allocations of FEFP funding for prior year errors disclosed by
its review as well as to prevent statewide allocations from exceeding the amount authorized
by the Legislature. Normally, such adjustments are treated as reductions of revenue in the
year the adjustment is made.

The District receives revenue from the state to administer certain categorical educational
programs. State Board of Education rules require that revenue earmarked for these
programs be expended only for the program for which the money is provided and require that
the money not expended as of the close of the fiscal year be carried forward into the
following year to be expended for the same categorical educational programs. Any unused
money is returned to the FDOE and so recorded in the year when returned.

The state allocates gross receipt taxes, generally known as Public Education Capital Outlay
(PECO) money, to the District on an annual basis for capital and other projects. The District
is authorized to expend these funds only upon applying for and receiving an encumbrance
authorization from the FDOE. Accordingly, the District recognizes the allocation of PECO
funds as deferred revenue until such time as the encumbrance authorization is approved.

M. Property Taxes - Revenue Recognition

In the government-wide financial statements, property tax revenue is recognized when
levied. The receivable is recorded net of an estimated uncoilectible, which is based on past
collection experience. In the fund financial statements, property tax revenue is recognized
when taxes are received. Year-end revenue is accrued for taxes collected by the County
Tax Collector and received by the District within 60 days subsequent to fiscal year-end.

N. Deferred Revenue/Liability

Funding for the Public Education Capital Outlay (PECO) programs are appropriated by the
Legislature, however, revenue recognition is deferred until an encumbrance authorization is
approved.

The non-current portion of deferred revenue in The Statement of Net Assets relates to a
forward purchase agreement. (See Note 11)

A deferred liability is recorded in the Statement of Net Assets {o reflect accrued proceeds
related to the Master Equipment Lease.

0. Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets
and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and
expenditures during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
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DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD EXHIBIT D-1
OF MIAMI-DADE COUNTY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

BUDGETS COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY:

A.

Legal Compliance

The annual budget is submitted to the Florida Commissioner of Education by major
functional levels such as instructional, instructional support, general administration,
maintenance, etc. Expenditures may not exceed appropriations without prior approval of the
School Board in the General Fund and Special Revenue Funds at the function level.
Budgetary control is exercised at the fund level for all other funds.

Florida Statutes, Section 1013.61, requires that the capital outlay budget designate the
proposed capital outlay expenditures by project for the year from all fund sources.
Accordingly, annual budgets for the Capital Project Funds are adopted on a combined basis
only.

Budgeted amounts may be amended by resolution of the Board at any Board meeting prior
to the due date for the Annual Financial Report (State Report). General Fund budgetary
disclosure in the accompanying financial statements reflects the final budget including all
amendments approved for the fiscal year through September 10, 2008.

Appropriations lapse at fiscal year-end, except for unexpended appropriations of categorical
grants, outstanding purchase orders, contracts, and certain available balances. These
balances are reflected at year-end either as reserved fund balance or designated,
unreserved fund balance, and are re-appropriated in the new fiscal year.

Encumbrance accounting is employed in governmental funds. Encumbrances (e.g.,
purchase orders, contracts) outstanding at year-end are reported as reservations of fund
balances and do not constitute expenditures or liabilities because the commitments will be
reappropriated and honored during the subsequent year.

Deficit Fund Equity

Section 1011.14 F.S. Loans Fund has an accumulated deficit balance of $(68.0) million at
June 30, 2008. The District is utilizing a Revenue Anticipation Note for interim financing of
capital projects, of which $150.0 million was outstanding at June 30, 2008. This deficit was a
result of recognizing capital outlay expenditures in this fund, and not recognizing the
proceeds from the line of credit as other financing sources, but instead, as a short-term
liability pursuant to generally accepted accounting principles. The District plans to eliminate
the deficit through the issuance of Certificates of Participation or other capital sources during
fiscal year 2008-09.

Comparison of Budget to Actual Results

The budgets for each of the Governmental Funds are accounted for on the modified accrual
basis of accounting.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3. CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, AND INVESTMENTS:

Deposits and Investments

The District's surplus funds are invested directly by the District's Office of Treasury Management.
Investments of the District's State Board of Education (SBE) bond proceeds held and administered
by the SBE are made by the State Board of Administration.

As authorized under State Statutes the School Board has adopted Schoo! Board Rule 6Gx13-
3B1.01, Deposit and Investment Policies for School Board Funds, {Investment Policy) as its formal
Investment Policy for all surplus funds, except for the Supplemental Early Retirement Funds, which
are invested under School Board Rule 6Gx13- 4D1.102. School Board Rule 6Gx 13- 3B1.01 policies
permit the following investments and are structured to place the highest priority on the safety of
principal and liquidity of funds:

. Time Deposits — School Board and State approved designated depository

. US Government direct obligations

. Revolving Repurchase Agreements or similar investment vehicles for the investment of
funds awaiting clearance with financial institutions

. Commercial Paper rated A1/P1/F1 or better

. Bankers Acceptances with the 100 largest banks in the world

. State Board of Administration Local Government investment Pool

J Obligations of the Federal Farm Credit Banks

. Obligations of the Federal Home Loan Bank

o Obligations of the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation

. Obligations guaranteed by the Government Nationat Mortgage Association

. Obligations of the Federal National Mortgage Association

. Securities of any investment company of investment trust registered under the Investment

Company Act of 1940, 15 U.S.C.

In addition, under School Board Rule 6Gx13- 4D1.102, Early Retirement Plan — [nvestment Policies,
the following investments are also permitted.

° Corporate or Taxable Government Bonds

° Equity Securities including index funds and actively managed mutual funds



Exh. D1 DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD
Dist. Pg 18-l OF MIAMI-DADE COUNTY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008
3. CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, AND INVESTMENTS, Continued:

EXHIBIT D-1

Cash, cash equivalents, and investments for governmental and fiduciary funds of the District as of
June 30, 2008 were as follows:

Investment Type

Fair Value
(In Thousands)

Weighted
Average
Maturity (Years)

U.S. Government Agency

Commercial Paper (less than 5% per
issuer)

Money Market Mutual Funds

State Board of Education — COBI
Guaranteed Investment Contract
Corporate Bonds — Pension Trust Fund
Total Debt Investments

Corporate Stocks — Pension Trust Fund
Total Investments

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Total Cash and Investments

$ 364,245 0.86

619,382 0.16

310,900 0.14

2,589 -

19,965 6.48

7,056 1.82

$ 1,314,137 0.45
15,763
$ 1,329,900
188,018
$ 1,617,918

At June 30, 2008, $817.4 million in cash and investments relate to unspent proceeds pertaining to
various financings including the City of Miami College of Policing Interlecal Construction Agreement,
City of North Miami Educational Facilities Construction Notes and Certificates of Participation
(COP’s), which are restricted assets whose use is limited to projects primarily related to the
acquisition and construction of school facilities and equipment as authorized by Board Resolutions
and Debt Covenants.
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3. CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, AND INVESTMENTS, Continued:

interest Rate Risk: In accordance with its investment policy under Board Rule 6Gx13- 3B-1.01, the
School Board manages its exposure to declines in fair values by substantially limiting the weighted
average maturity on all investments to one year or less. U.S. Government Agency Securities include
$102,961,187 in callable securities that are assumed to be called on the next call date, and as such
the weighted average maturity reflect the call date as the maturity date for these securities. U.S.
Government Agency Securities include $13,984,792 in step-up securities with 1.82 years weighted
average maturities.

Credit Risk:
Percentage of Debt
Investment Type Rating * Investments

Federal Farm Credit Banks AAA : 3.51%
Federal Home Loan Bank AAA 12.78%
Federal Home Loan Morigage AAA 8.77%
Corporation

Federal National Mortgage Association AAA 1.57%
Commercial Paper Al+ 48.57%
Money Market Mutual Funds AAAM 23.37%
State Board of Education — COBI Not Rated 0.21%
Guaranteed Investment Contract Not Rated 1.50%
Corporate Bonds — Pension Trust Fund AA 0.08%
Corporate Bonds — Pension Trust Fund A 0.25%
Corporate Bonds — Pension Trust Fund B 0.20%

* Standards & Poor's ratings.

Concentration Risks: The District permits up to 20% in Federal Home Loan Bank, 20% in Federal
Home Loan Mortgage Corporation agency securities, and up to 7.5% in Commercial Paper with a
single issuer of which all were less than 5% of {otal investments.

Cash/Deposits

The District's cash deposits include money market, demand deposits and petty cash. All bank
balances of the District are fully insured or collateralized. At June 30, 2008, the deposit’s fair value
and bank balances were $188,018,220.
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4, CAPITAL ASSETS:
Capital asset balances and activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008 were as follows (in
thousands):
Balance Additions Deletions Balance
July 1, 2007 June 30, 2008

Non-Depreciable

Capital Assets:
Land $ 272,547 8 45850 % - $ 318,397
Land Improvements 107,876 67,307 - 175,183
Construction-in-
Progress 757,694 634,269 769,767 622,196
Software Development
Under Capital Leases ] 19,009 ) 19,009
Total Non-Depreciable
Capital Assets 1,138,117 766,435 769,767 1,134,785
Depreciable Capital

Assets:
Buildings and
Improvements 3,480,384 734,821 6,562 4,188,643
Furniture, Fixtures, and
Equipment 306,554 55,678 30,524 331,708
Motor Vehicles 150,168 1,645 6,593 145,220
Total Depreciable

Capital Assets 3,917,106 792,144 43,679 4,665,571
Less Accumulated

Depreciation for:
Building and
Improvements 897,082 104,219 5,728 995,573
Furniture, Fixtures, and
Equipment 171,410 28,140 25,580 173,970
Motor Vehicles 53,623 9,203 4,896 57,930
Total Accumulated

Depreciation 1,122,115 141,562 36,204 1,227,473

Net Capital Assets $ 3,933,108 $ 1,417,017 $ 777,242 $ 4,572,883
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4. CAPITAL ASSETS, Continued:
For fiscal year ended June 30, 2008, depreciation by function is as follows:
Amount
Functions (in thousands)

Instructional Services 3 7,664
Instructional Support Services 2,543
Pupil Transportation Services 7,317
Operation and Maintenance of Plant 3,205
School Administration 691
General Administration 241
Administrative Technology Services -
Food Services 1,309
Other 42
Facilities Ancillary Support 13,079
Unallocated to a specific function 105,471

Total Depreciation $ 141,562

Construction-in-progress and related commitments are comprised of the following (in thousands):

Elementary Schools
Middle Schools
Senior High Schools
Special Schools
Administration/Other

TOTAL

Incurred
To Date

246,999
85,241
263,676
1,805
24,475

$

622,196

As part of its capital outlay program, the District has entered into various construction contracts. At
June 30, 2008, the District had construction commitments of approximately $460 million.
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5.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD
OF MIAMI-DADE COUNTY

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES AND OPERATING TRANSFERS:

EXHIBIT D1

Interfund receivables and payables consisted of the following balances as of June 30, 2008 (in

thousands):

Major Funds:

General Fund

Other Debt Service Funds
Section 1011.14 F.S. Loans
Capital Improvement LOML
Other Capital Projects

Total Major Funds

Non-Major Funds

Totals

Due From Due To
Other Other
Funds Funds

3 139,214 $ 400
- 630

77,691 15

381 122,016

6,061 49,147

$ 223,347 $ 172,208
899 52,038

$ 224,246 $ 224,246

Most of the interfund activity represents reimbursement to the General Fund for payments made on

behalf of other funds.

A summary of operating transfers for the year ended June 30, 2008 were as follows (in thousands):

Transfers to:

Other Section Capital Other Non-
. General Debt 1011.14 Improvement Capital Major
Transfers from: Fund Service F.S. Loans LOML Projects Funds Total

Major Funds:
General Fund $ - 8 - - 3 2482 § - 11,900 $ 14,382
Section 1011.14 - - 56,242 - - - 56,242
F.S. Loans
Capital 173,784 112,976 77,546 - 1,214 - 365,520
Improvement
LOML
Other Capital - 44,829 51,896 - - - 96,725
Projects
Non-Major Funds 35,586 - - - - - 35,586
Total $ 209370 $ 157,805 $ 185,684 $ 2,482 $ 1,214 $ 11900 §$ 568,455

The transfers to the General Fund relate to funding for the building, maintenance, renovation and/or repair
of school facilities, pursuant to Section 1011.71 of the Florida Statutes. Transfers to other non-major
funds relate to the Food Service Fund.
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6. RECEIVABLES/PAYABLES FROM OTHER AGENCIES:

Receivables at June 30, 2008, were as foliows (in thousands):

General Other Capital Non-Major
Fund Projects Funds Total

Due From Other Agencies

Federal Government:

Medicaid Federal $ 6,400 $ - $ - $ 6,400

Food Service Reimbursement - - 2,461 2,461

Fund For The Improvement of

Education - - 1,008 1,008

Magnet Schools - - 1,174 1,174

Miscellaneous Federal 246 - 2,219 2,465
State Government:

Department of Education SBE

CO&DS - - 8,690 8,690

Public Education Capital Outlay - - 6,447 6,447

K-3 Class Size Reduction - 255 - 255

Classrooms For Kids - 17,518 - 17,518

IDEA Part B - - 14,802 14,802

Title | - - 5,427 5,427

Title Ul - - 9,022 9,022

SAVES - - 1,699 1,699

FEMA 687 - - 687

Miscellaneous State 160 - 7,803 7,963
Local Government:

Miscellaneous Local 3,825 - 1,396 5,221

Miami-Dade County - 1,280 - 1,280

E-Rate 7,194 - - 7,194

Driver's Education Program 2,200 - - 2,200
Total $ 20,712 $ 19,063 $ 62,148 $ 101,913

Payables at June 30, 2008, were as foliows (in thousands):
General Other Capital Non-Major
Fund Proijects Funds Total

Due To Other Agencies
Federal Government:

Miscellaneous Federal $ - - $ 1,032 $ 1,032
State Government:

Miscellaneous State 33 - 810 843
Local Government:

Charter Schools 3,892 - - 3,892

Miscellaneous Local 294 - 1,375 1,669

Total $ 4,218 $ - $ 3,217 $ 7436
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7. SHORT-TERM DEBT

Short-term debt activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008, was as follows (in thousands):

Balance Balance
July 1, 2007 Additions Deletions June 30, 2008

Tax  Anticipation  Note
(TAN), Series 2007, issued
on OQctober 5, 2007.
Effective yield of 3.418%,
with a maturity date of
October 3, 2008. $ -0- $ 220,000 $ -0- $ 220,000

Revenue Anticipation Note
(RAN) Series 2007A line of
credit, issued on February
28, 2007 with a maturity
date of January 31, 2008.
Interest rate to be applied
to the unpaid balance, not
to exceed $220,000,000,
will be a variable rate equal
to the sum of the Securities
Industry and Financial
Markets Association
(SIFMA) index plus .35%
per annum. The effective
yield as of June 30, 2008,
was 4.08% 48,846 52,444 101,290 -0-

Revenue Anticipation Note
(RAN), Series 2008A,
issued on January 31,
2008, effective yield of
1.950%, with a maturity
date of May 29, 2008. -0- 66,000 66,000 -0-

Revenue Anticipation Note
(RAN), Series 2008B,
issued on May 20, 2008,
effective yield of 1.890%,
with a maturity date of
January 30, 2009. -0- 150,000 -0- 150,000

Total $ 48,846 $ 488,444 $ 167,290 $ 370,000

Proceeds from the TAN were used as a working capital reserve in the General Fund as permitted
under state and federal tax laws. The proceeds from the 2008A and 2008B (RANs) were used to
reimburse the capital outlay funds for repair and renovation of existing facilities and new capacity
projects, and retire a portion of the previously issued RANSs.
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8. COMPENSATED ABSENCES:

The District's employee vacation and sick leave policies provide for the granting of a specific number
of days of vacation based on years of service governed by applicable labor contracts and one day of
sick leave with pay per each month of employment. Active employees, exciuding administrators,
may request payment of 80% of their unused sick leave which has accumulated during the fiscal
year, provided they have not used more than three sick/personal days during that time and have a
remaining balance, after payment, of twenty-one days. These policies also provide for paying most
employees unused vacation up to 80 days upon termination, and up to 100% of unused sick leave
after thirteen years of service; 50% after ten years; 45% after six years; 40% after three years and
35% during the first three years of qualified service upon retirement, death or resignation. Vacation
accrual is limited to 60 days for twelve-month active employees.

The School Board approved the adoption of the Miami-Dade County Public Schools Terminal Leave
Retirement Program (TLRP) at its May 14, 2003 Board meeting. The TLRP Program consists of a
tax-favored retirement plan, which allows the Board to direct accrued annual (vacation) leave or
terminal sick leave (accrued sick days) for employees who are separating from service as a result of
retirement, or entering into or continuing DROP, to a tax-sheltered annuity program, or other qualified
plan, in lieu of a taxable cash payment to the employee, upon separation from service.

The program is mandatory as a result of Board action which became effective on May 15, 2003, for
all personnel (except AFSCME employees) who will have their annual (vacation) leave and terminal
sick leave automatically contributed to either the Board’'s Tax Sheltered Annuity 403(b) or 401(a)
Programs. Contributions into this program will not be subject to either Federal Income Tax
(estimated 27%) or Social Security Tax (FICA) of 7.65%. Any amount of accrued terminal leave in
excess of the amounts authorized by the IRS will be paid out to the retiring employee and will be
subject to applicable taxes.

The current portion (the amount expected to be liquidated with current available resources) of the
accumulated vested vacation and anticipated sick leave payments is recorded in the General Fund
and is included in accrued payroll and compensated absences. The liabilities recorded include
provisions for the employer's portion of pension contributions, FICA and other fringe benefits on the
vested vacation and sick leave as applicable. At June 30, 2008, the accrued liability for
compensated absences in the General Fund was $8,932 (in thousands).

Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 18, Accounting for Compensated
Absences, requires governmental agencies {o record as a liability the vested and future rights to sick
and/or vacation leave. Accordingly, consideration of the probability of partially vested employees
becoming fully vested and actual past termination payment experience in the determination of this
liability was considered.

The statement of net assets reflects both the current and long-term portions of compensated
absences including fringe benefits. At June 30, 2008, the current and long-term portions were
$16,900 and $260,689 respectively (in thousands).
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9. CAPITAL LEASES:

EXHIBIT D1

The District has entered into various capital lease agreements for the acquisition of certain property,
vehicles, and equipment which are stated at acquisition cost and included as part of our Capital
Assets. At June 30, 2008, the amount of leased equipment recorded in Capital Assets was
$108,069,111. Additionally, $32,620,178 of unspent proceeds relating to the Master Equipment
Lease Agreement is disclosed as restricted cash and investments at June 30, 2008 in Note 3.

The following is a summary of the future minimum lease payments under capital leases together with
the present value of the minimum lease payments as of June 30, 2008 (in thousands):

Fiscal Year

2009

2010

2011

2012

2013

2014 - 2017

Total Minimum Lease Payments

Less - Amount Representing Interest

Present Value of Minimum Lease Payments

Total

26,586

25,504

25,169

21,340

21,064

30,967

150,630

17,880

132,750

The amount representing interest was calculated using imputed rates ranging primarily from

0.00% to 16.00%.



EXHIBIT D1 DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD Exh. D1

10.

OF MIAMI-DADE COUNTY Dist. Pg 18-R
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

NOTES PAYABLE:

City of North Miami, Florida Educational Facilities Construction Notes

On October 25, 2008, the District entered into an interlocal agreement with the City of North Miami
(the "City”), to provide for the financing, construction and acquisition of two public high schools
located within the City. In accordance with the interlocal agreement, the City issued its Florida
Educational Facilities Construction Notes, Series 2006, in the aggregate principal amount of
$124,000,000. The proceeds are to be used to provide construction financing for a portion of the
costs of the high scheols. The District agreed to oversee the design, development, and construction
of the high schools and provide permanent financing of the high schools from the proceeds of
Certificates to be issued in fiscal year 2009-10.

LONG-TERM BONDS PAYABLE:

State Board of Education Capital Outlay Bonds

Capital Outlay Bonds are issued by the State Board of Education (SBE) on behalf of the District and
are generally referred tc as "SBE Bonds." The bonds mature serially and are secured by a pledge of
the District's portion of the state revenues derived from the sale of automobile license plates.
Principal and Interest payments, investment of Debt Service Fund resources, and compliance with
reserve requirements are administered by the State Board of Education and the State Board of
Administration. At June 30, 2008, amounts withheld and in the custody of the state totaled
$2,589,467 and are included as cash and investments with fiscal agent in the Statement of Net
Assets.

General Obligation Bonds

On March 8, 1988, pursuant to Florida Statutes, Section 1010.41, voter residents of the District
approved a referendum authorizing the School Board to issue General Obligation School Bonds in an
aggregate amount not exceeding $980 million, to be issued as required. The proceeds from the
bonds are to be used to pay the cost of providing new educational facilities and improving existing
educational facilities. As of June 30, 2008, no bonds remain to be issued. Principal and interest on
the bonds will be paid from ad valorem school district taxes on all taxable real and personal property,
excluding homestead exemption as required by Florida law, without limitation as to rate or amount.
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10. LONG-TERM BONDS PAYABLE, Continued:

A summary of bonds payable as of June 30, 2008 is as follows (in thousands):

Authorized Issued

EXHIBIT D1

Outstanding

State Board of Education (SBE) -
Capital Outlay Bonds - Series 1999-
A, due in varying annual payments
through January 1, 2018, with
interest rates ranging from 4.00% to
475%. Interest is payable semi-
annually on January 1 and July 1.
Bonds are callable on January 1,
through December 31, 2008, at par
plus 1% premium and thereafter at 3 3,100 $ 3,100
par.

State Board of Education (SBE) —
Capital Outlay Bonds — Series 2000-
A, due in varying annual payments
through January 1, 2020, with
interest rates ranging from 4.65% to
6.00%. Interest is payable semi-
annually on January 1 and July 1.
Bonds are callable on January 1,
through December 31, 2010 at par
plus 1% premium, and thereafter at
par. $ 900 3 900

State Board of Education (SBE) —
Capital Outlay Bonds ~ Series 2001-
A, due in varying annual payments
through January 1, 2021, with
interest rates ranging from 4.10% to
5.25%. Interest is payable semi-
annually on January and July 1.
Bonds are callable on January 1,
2012 at par plus 1% premium, and
thereafter at par. $ 495 $ 495

State Board of Education (SBE) —
Capital Outlay Bonds — Series 2002-
A, due in varying annual payments
through January 1, 2022, with
interest rates ranging from 3.00% to
5.00%. Interest is payable semi-
annually on January and July 1.
Bonds are callable on January 1,
through December 31, 2012 at par
plus 1% premium, and thereafter at
par. $ 1,950 $ 1,950

1,960

80

380

1,580
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10. LONG- TERM BONDS PAYABLE, Continued:

State Board of Education (SBE) —
Capital Outlay Bonds — Series 2003-
A, due in varying annual payments
through January 1, 2023, with
interest rates ranging from 3.00% to
5.00%. Interest is payable semi-
annually on January and July 1.
Bonds are callable on January 1,
through December 31, 2013 at par
plus 1% premium, and thereafter at
par.

State Board of Education (SBE) —
Capital Outlay Bonds — Series 2004-
A, due in varying annual payments
through January 1, 2024, with
interest rates ranging from 3.00% to
4625%. Interest is payable semi-
annually on January and July 1.
Bonds are callable on January 1
through December 31, 2014 at par
plus 1% premium, and thereafter at
par.

State Board of Education (SBE)
Capital Qutlay Bonds — Series 2005A
due in varying annual payments
through January 1, 2025 with interest
rates ranging from 3% to 5%.
Interest is payable semi-annually on
January 1 and July 1. Bonds are
callable on January 1 through
December 31, 2015 at par plus 1%
premium, and thereafter at par. A
portion of the proceeds was used to
refund SBE Capital Outlay Bonds
Series 1996A & 1997A to achieve
debt service savings.

State Board of Education (SBE)
Capital Outlay Bonds — Series 2005B
due in varying annual payments
through January 1, 2020 with interest
rates ranging from 3% to 5%. Interest
is payable semi-annually on January
1 and July 1. Bonds are callable on
January 1 through December 31,
2015 at par plus 1% premium and
thereafter at par. The proceeds from
these bonds were used to refund
SBE Capital Outlay Bonds Series
1998A and 2000A to achieve debt
service savings.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

Exh. D-1
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Authorized issued Qutstanding
1,285 $ 1,285 1,055
5,115 3 5,115 4,510
89,680 $ 89,680 76,850
2,735 $ 2,735 2,720
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10. LONG- TERM BONDS PAYABLE, Continued:

Authorized Issued Outstanding

State Board of Education (SBE) — $ 8,425 $ 8,425 $ 8,425
Capital Outlay Bonds - Series
2008A, due in varying annual
payments through January 1, 2028,
with interest rates ranging from
3.25% to 5.00%. interest is payable
semi-annually on January and July 1.
Bonds are cailable on January 1
through December 31, 2012 at par
plus 1% premium, and thereafter at
par.

General Obligation Schools Bonds,

Series 1994, consisting of Serial

Bonds due in varying serial payments

through August 1, 2014. Interest

rates ranging from 5.0% to 6.4%, is

payable February 1 and August 1.

Bonds maturing on August 1, 2004

and thereafter were called on this

date at the redemption price of 101%.

The bonds were remarketed with the

same maturity dates, rates, and issue

date at a true interest cost of 2.66%.

The sale resulted in the same cash

flow as the prior debt service and an Third in a
economic gain of $11,811,727.15 series not
(Premium less issuance costs and to exceed $
call premium) for project fund $ 980,000
deposits.

99,030 $ 68,135

General Obligation Refunding School
Bonds Series 1997, consisting of
Serial Bonds due in varying serial
payments through February 15,
2017. Interest, at a rate of 5.00%, is
payable February 15 and August 15.
The Bonds maturing on February 15,
2008 and thereafter were called on
November 1, 2006 at the redemption
price of 101%. The Bonds were
remarketed at the same maturity
dates, rates, and issue date at a true
interest cost of 3.83%. The sale
resulted in the same cash flow as
prior debt service and an economic
gain of $4,237,016.19 (premium less
issuance cost and call premium),
project fund deposits. $ 86,785 $ 86,785 $ 79,990
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10. LONG- TERM BONDS PAYABLE, Continued:

General Obligation Refunding School
Bonds Series 1993, consisting of
Serial Bonds due in varying serial
payments through July 15, 2008.
interest rates ranging from 4.0% to
5.25%, is payable January 15 and
July 15. The Bonds maturing on July
15, 2004, and thereafter were called
on this date at the redemption price
of 100%. The bonds were
remarketed with the same maturity
dates, rates, and issue date at a true
interest cost of 1.65%. The sale
resulted in the same cash flow as the
prior debt service and an economic
gain of $8,717,699.63 (premium less
issuance costs), project fund
deposits.

General Obligation Refunding School
Bonds Series 1996, consisting of
Serial Bonds due in varying serial
payments through July 15, 2011.
Interest, with rates ranging from
4.50% to 5.00%, is payable January
15 and July 15. The Bonds maturing
on July 15, 2007 and thereafter were
called on November 1, 2006 at the
redemption price of 101%. The
Bonds were remarketed at the same
maturity dates, rates, and issue date
at a true interest cost of 3.72%. The
sale resulted in the same cash flow
as prior debt service and an
economic gain of $1,382,979.75
(premium less issuance cost and call
premium), project fund deposits.

General Obligation Refunding School
Bonds Series 1998, consisting of
Serial Bonds due in varying serial
payments through August 1, 2015.
Interest rates ranging from 4.0% to
5.38%, is payable February 1 and
August 1. The Bonds are not subject
to redemption prior to maturity.

Total Long-Term Bonds
Payable

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

Exh. D1
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Authorized Issued Outstanding
152,855 $ 85,855 18,940
79,650 $ 79,650 65,275
154,580 $ 154,580 148,540
479,440
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10. LONG-TERM BONDS PAYABLE, Continued:

Debt service requirements through maturity for all long-term bonds payable at June 30, 2008 are as
follows (in thousands):

Year
Ending Total
June 30 Principal Interest Requirements
2009 3 74,370 3 22,478 $ 96,848
2010 58,175 19,460 77,635
2011 61,085 16,562 77,657
2012 64,395 13,412 77,807
2013 49,290 10,633 59,823
2014 — 2018 162,495 17,692 180,187
2019 ~ 2023 5,710 1,729 7,439
2024 — 2028 3,910 544 4,454

Total $ 479,440 $ 102,410 $ 581,850
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OBLIGATIONS UNDER LEASE PURCHASE AGREEMENT -
CERTIFICATES OF PARTICIPATION:

On August 1, 1994, the District entered into a Lease Purchase Agreement, with the Dade County
School Board Foundation, Inc., a Florida not-for-profit corporation (the "Foundation"), to finance the
acquisition and construction of new schools and appurtenant equipment and other property (the
"Facilities") to be operated by the District. The members of the School Board serve as the Board of
Directors of The Foundation. The Foundation was formed by the School Board solely for the purpose
of acting as the lessor of the Facilities, with the District as lessee. The School Board as lessor
entered into Ground Leases with the Foundation for the Facilities site and all improvements. In
conjunction therewith, Certificates of Participation, (the "Certificates") were issued to third parties,
evidencing undivided proportionate interests in basic lease payments to be made by the District, as
lessee, pursuant to the Lease Purchase Agreement. Fee title to the Facilities and the Faclilities site is
in the name of the District. The District is responsible for operation, maintenance, use, occupancy,
upkeep and insurance of the Facilities.

The Foundation leases the Facilities to the District under the Lease Purchase Agreements, which are
automatically renewable annually through May 1, 2037, unless terminated, in accordance with the
provisions of the Lease Purchase Agreements, as a result of default or the failure of the School
Board to appropriate funds to make lease payments in its final official budget. The remedies on
default or upon an event of non-appropriation include the surrender of the Facilities by the District
and its re-letting for the remaining Ground Lease term, or the voluntary sale of the Facilities by the
School Board, in either case with the proceeds to be applied against the School Board's obligations
under the Lease Purchase Agreements.

The Certificates are not separate legal obligations of the School Board, but represent undivided
interests in lease payments to be made from appropriate funds budgeted annually by the School
Board for such purpose from current or other funds authorized by law and regulations of the
Department of Education, including the local optional millage levy. However, neither the School
Board, the District, the State of Florida, nor any political subdivision thereof, are obligated to pay,
except from appropriated funds, any sums due under the Lease Purchase Agreement from any
source of taxation. The full faith and credit of the School Board and the District is not pledged for
payment of such sums due under the Lease Purchase Agreements and such sums do not constitute
an indebtedness of the School Board or the District within the meaning of any constitutional or
statutory provision or limitation.  The District intends that the Series 2000A, 2001C, 2004A, 2005A,
2008C, and 2006D lease payments will primarily be paid out of impact fees collected on new
residential construction by Miami-Dade County and remitted to the School Board.

Basic lease payments are deposited with the Trustee semi-annually. For accounting purposes, due
to the consolidation of the Foundation within the financial statements, basic lease payments are
reflected as debt service expenditures when payable to Certificate holders. Payments of the
outstanding Certificates of Participation are insured through MBIA Insurance Corp.,, AMBAC
Indemnity Corp., Financial Security Assurance (FSA) Inc., and Financial Guarantee Insurance
Company (FGIC).

A trust fund was established with the Trustee to facilitate payments in accordance with the Lease
Purchase Agreements and the Trust Agreements. Various accounts are maintained by the Trustee
in accordance with the trust indenture. All funds beld in the various accounts, are invested by the
Trustee, as directed by the School Board. Interest earned on funds in the Acquisition Account is
transferred to the Lease Payment Account.
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11. OBLIGATIONS UNDER LEASE PURCHASE AGREEMENT -
CERTIFICATES OF PARTICIPATION, Continued:

A summary of Certificates of Participation payable as of June 30,

thousands):
Issue Date Final Maturity interest Rate(s)

1998A Series — Serial & Term 06/01/98 08/01/27 True Interest Cost 5.025%
Certificates. Partial refunding of 4% t0 5.25%
1994B and 19968 Series.
1998C Series — Serial & Term 11/01/98 08/01/25 True Interest Cost 4.975%
Certificates. Partial refunding of 4% t0 5.25%
1994A, 1996A and 19968
Series.
2000A Series — Serial & Term 08/15/00 10/01/20 True Interest Cost 5.402%
Certificates. 4.4% to 6%
2000 Quatlified Zone Academy 12/21/00 12/21/13 N/A
Bonds — Interest is paid by U.S.
Government through issuance
of federal income tax credits.
2001 Qualified Zone Academy 06/01/01 06/01/15 N/A
Bonds - Interest is paid by U.S.
Government through issuance
of federal income tax credits.
2003 Qualified Zone Academy 12/18/03 12/18/18 N/A

Bond - Interest is paid by the
U.S. Government through
issuance of federal income tax
credits.

2006 Qualified Zone Academy
Bond-Interest is paid by the 12/15/06 12/15/22 N/A
U.S. Government  through
issuance of federal income tax

credits.
2001B Series — Auction Rate 06/19/01 05/01/31 Variable Interest - 3.41% @
Certificates ~ converted to June 30, 2008

variable rate mode based on
LIBOR plus 0.30% under a
Private Placement with
predetermined reset terms.

2001C Series — Serial and 09/01/01 10/01/21 True Interest Cost 4.734%
Term Certificates. 3.5% t0 5.5%
2002A Series — Auction Rate 12/13/02 08/01/27 Variable interest — 2.96% @
Certificates converted to June 30, 2008

variable rate mode based on
LIBOR plus 0.30% under a
Private Placement with
predetermined reset terms.

2002B Series — Auction Rate 12/13/02 08/01/27 Variable Interest 2.96% @
Certificates ~ converted  to June 30, 2008
variable rate mode based on

LIBOR plus 0.30% under a

Private Placement with

predetermined reset terms.

EXHIBIT D1

2008 is as follows (in

Issued

$ 132,500

283,700

100,720

24,508

15,000

9,744

2,600

54,650

42,235

75,000

75,000

$

Outstandin

22,450

8,265

8,620

24,508

15,000

9,744

2,600

50,200

7,255

68,070

68,070
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11. OBLIGATIONS UNDER LEASE PURCHASE AGREEMENT -

CERTIFICATES OF PARTICIPATION, Continued:

Exh. D1

Dist. Pg 18-Z

A summary of Certificates of Participation payable as of June 30, 2008 is as follows (in thousands),

continued:

2003A Series — Include Capital
Appreciation Bonds, Fixed &
Term Certificates. Have a
mandatory purchase date of
8/1/08. Refunded 1998B series
at 101% with a gross savings of
$5,518,342 and a net present
value economic savings of
$5,064,715.

2003B Series — Include Fixed
Rate & Term Rate Certificates.
Have a mandatory purchase date
of 5&/1/11. Refunded 2001A
Series at 101% with a gross
savings of $6,951,261 and a net
present value economic savings
of $6,700,474.

2003C Series — Fixed Rate
Certificates. Refunded 1993
Series at 102% with a gross
savings of $1,218,248 and a net
present value economic savings
of $1,205,967.

2003D Series — Serial & Term
Certificates.

2004A Series — Serial Certifi-
cates. Partially refunded 2000A
and 2001C at 100% with a gross
savings of $3,315,533 and a net
present value economic savings
of $3,226,428.

2005A Series
Certificates.

Serial & Term

2006A Series — Serial & Term
Certificates.

2006B Series - Serial & Term
Certificates.

2006C Series
Certificates.

Serial & Term

2006D Series —~ Serial Certifi-
cates. Partially refunded 2001C
at 100% with a gross savings of
$558,351 and a net present value
economic savings of $418,660.

Issue Date

03/01/03

03/01/03

05/05/03

06/01/03

08/12/04

06/28/05

03/15/06

04/11/06

05/10/06

12/21/06

Final Maturity

interest Rate(s)

08/01/27

05/01/31

08/01/08

08/01/29

10/01/20

04/01/20

11/01/31

11/01/31

10/01/21

10/01/21

True Interest Cost 3.418%
Assumed 3.5%-Beyond
Mandatory Purchase Date

True Interest Cost 3.854%
Assumed 3.5%-Beyond
Mandatory Purchase Date

True interest Cost 2.53%
5.125% 0 5.5%

True Interest Cost 4.358%
2% to 5%

True Interest Cost 4.29%
2.25% t0 5.25%

True Interest Cost 3.892%
3.5%to 5%

True Interest Cost 4.49%
3.375% 10 5.00%

True Interest Cost 4.54%
3.50% to 5.00%

True Interest Cost 4.41%
3.875% to 5.00%

True Interest Cost 4.098%
3.625% to 5.00%

Issued

63,633

137,780

24170

165,210

87,210

56,380

201,080

208,150

53,665

10,570

Outstanding

61,453

132,150

4,625

161,775

86,970

34,930

196,485

203,375

51,105

10,485



Exh. D-1 DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD
Dist. Pg 18-AA OF MIAMI-DADE COUNTY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

1. OBLIGATIONS UNDER LEASE PURCHASE AGREEMENT -
CERTIFICATES OF PARTICIPATION, Continued:

Issue Date Final Maturity Interest Rate(s)
2007A Series — Serial & Term 05/10/07 05/01/32 True Interest Cost 4.52%
Certificates. 3.75% to 5.00%
2007B Series — Serial & Term 05/24/07 05/01/32 True Interest Cost 4.47%
Certificates. 4.00% to 5.00%
2007C Series — Auction Rate 05/24/07 05/01/37 Variable Interest 3.41% @
Certificates converted to variable June 30, 2008
rate mode based on LIBOR plus
0.30% under a Private Placement
with predetermined reset terms.
2008A Series ~ Serial Certifi- 06/19/08 08/01/26 True Interest Cost 4.327%
cates. Forward Cash market 5%
Refunding of Series 1998A &
1998C with a gross savings of
$11,015,225 and a net present
value economic savings of
$9,010,527.
20088 Series — Serial & Term 05/28/08 05/01/33 True Interest Cost 4.869%
Certificates. 3.5% to 5.25%

$

EXHIBIT D-1
Issued Qutstanding

316,515 § 316,515
101,265 101,265
90,825 90,825
233,400 233,400
538,305 538,305
3,103,815 2,508,445
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1. OBLIGATIONS UNDER LEASE PURCHASE AGREEMENT -
CERTIFICATES OF PARTICIPATION, Continued:

At June 30, 2008 the following defeased certificates remain outstanding:

Defeased Certificates Amount Qutstanding
1998A $ 96,730,000
19988 $ 55,750,000
1998C $140,160.000
2000A $ 67,700,000
2001A $120,575,000
2001C $ 25,925,000

Exh. D1
Dist. Pg 18-BB

The total obligation under lease purchase agreements — Certificates of Participation is as follows

(doliars in thousands):

Year Ending Total

June 30 Requirements®
2009 220,053
2010 169,596
2011 299,107
2012 167,886
2013 167,764
2014 - 2018 903,301
2019 - 2023 863,402
2024 - 2028 742,494
2029 - 2033 522,736
2034 — 2038 80,903

Total 4,137,242
Less: interest (rates ranging from 3.25% to 6.00%) (1,628,797)
Principal $ 2,508,445

%

the debt, and are not considered reduction of principal until the year of maturity.

The schedule above reflects required annual payments to the sinking fund for the retirement of
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EXHIBIT D1

OBLIGATIONS UNDER LEASE PURCHASE AGREEMENT -
CERTIFICATES OF PARTICIPATION, Continued:

Forward Interest Rate Swaps:

Objectives: The District entered into forward interest rate swaps (referred to herein collectively as *Swaps”) in
order to lower its cost of capital and protect against rising interest rates. The Swaps are a hedge on the
District’s floating rate debt and were executed to manage its mix of fixed and floating rate exposure in its on-
going borrowing program.

Summary of Swap Transactions by Category:

Forward Synthetic Fixed Rate Swap Transactions

Notional Fixed Variable Counterparty Fair Value at
Date of Amount Effective | Termination | Associated Payable Receivable credit rating at June 30,
Execution Outstanding Date Date Certificates | Swap Rate Swap Rate June 30, 2008 2008
o 70% 1Mo
04-03-2006 $68,070,000 04-01-07 08-01-2027 COP 2002A 3.821% LIBOR AaalAA- ($3,076,839)
o 70% 1Mo
04-03-2006 $68,070,000 04-01-07 08-01-2027 COP 2002B 3.821% LIBOR Aaa/AA- ($3,086,440)
. 70% 1Mo
04-03-2008 $57,440,000 08-01-08 07-15-2027 COP 2003A 3.884% LIBOR A2/A ($3,024,269)

Swap Payments and Associated Debt: As of June 30, 2008, debt service requirements and net swap
payments were as follows:

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Swap Net Interest Total Interest
2007-08 $3,945,000 $5,277,577.66 $1,003,126.27 $6,280,703.93

Risk Disclosure:

Credit Risk. The Swaps rely upon the performance of the third parties who serve as swap counterparties, and
as a result the District is exposed to credit risk, or the risk that a swap counterparty fails to perform according to
its contractual obligations. The appropriate measurement of this risk at the reporting date is the fair value of
the swaps, as shown in the columns labeled Fair Value in the tables above. All Fair Values have been
calculated using the Par Value Method. To mitigate credit risk, the District maintains strict credit standards for
swap counterparties. The current swap counterparties have ratings in single-A category or better. To further
mitigate credit risk, the District's swap documents require counterparties to post collateral for the District's
benefit if they are downgraded below a designated threshold.

Basis Risk. The District's Swaps expose the District to basis risk should the relationship between the floating
rates the District will receive on the swaps (70% of LIBOR) fall short of the variable rate on the associated
bonds the expected savings may not be realized. On August 1, 2008 the 2003A certificates were called under
a mandatory tender {put) and new variable rate bonds were issued and are subject to the same basis risk. The
Series 2002A & B were originally issued as insured auction rate certificates whose floating rate was expected
to correspond closely with the floating rate the District would receive on the swaps. Because of the severe
disruption in the auction rate market in early 2008, the floating rate on the certificates rose sharply and the
District chose to enter into a private placement of the certificates. The private placement has reduced the rate
on the cerificates from the elevated levels created by the market disruption. However the rate on the
certificates, relative to floating rate market benchmarks, is higher than originally anticipated when the swaps
were first executed, creating a higher all-in cost to the District. As of June 30, 2008 the variable rate was
2.96%, while the LIBOR rate was 2.46% and the District received 1.72% (70%).

Termination Risk. The District's swap agreements do not contain any out-of-the-ordinary termination events
that would expose it to significant termination risk. In keeping with market standards the District or the
counterparty may terminate each swap if the other party fails to perform under the terms of the contract. In
addition, the swap documents allow either party to terminate in the event of a significant loss of
creditworthiness. The District views such events to be remote at this time. If at the time of the termination a
swap has a negative vaiue, the District would be liable to the counterparty for a payment equal to the fair value
of such swap.
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12. DEBT SERVICE:

The amount available for debt service consists of resources from the Debt Service Funds legally
required to be used for debt service until the related debt is extinguished (in thousands):

Categories: Amounts
Reserved for Payment of State Board

of Education and Capital Outlay Bonds $ 2,589
Designated for Payment of District Bond Funds 68,105
Reserved for Other Debt Service 21,463
Total Available in Debt Service Funds $ 92,157

All Certificates of Participation Lease Payments and ail other amounts required to be paid by the
School Board under the various Series under the Master Lease and all other Leases are made from
legally available funds appropriated for such purpose by the School Board. The substantive portion
for these payments is provided by the Local Optional Millage Levy on ad-valorem property. Separate
Lease Payment Accounts are established for each series of Certificates issued under the Trust
Agreement. Lease Payments are due under the Master Lease on an all-or-none basis and are
payable on a parity basis solely from legally available funds appropriated by the School Board for

such purpose. Such payments are normally transferred to the Trustee 15 days before Lease
Payments are due.
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ESTIMATED LIABILITY ON INSURANCE RISKS AND PENDING CLAIMS:

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of
assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees and natural disasters. The District retains some
risk of loss (self-insures) for certain risks as follows:

Risk Retention/ Coverage after
Type Deductible Retention/Deductible
Workers’ $1,000,000 Statutory/$1,000,000
Compensation
General, Fleet $100,000/$200,000 $500,000 per occurrence,
Liability, and Errors $3,250,000 annual aggregate
and Omissions
Property 4% of affected property value $250,000,000 for ali perils including
for hurricanes, subject to a per windstorms, earthquakes and
loss deductible of $25,000,000; floods.
$500,000 per incident for all
other perils.
$100,000 for each act of $50,000,000 annual aggregate.
terrorism.

The School Board has a fully-insured Health Insurance Program for eligible employees and retirees.
The Health Insurance Provider for the 2007-08 fiscal year was United Healthcare Point of Service
(POS), HMO and Neighborhood Health Partnership (NHP) HMO. As of January 1, 2008, the School
Board paid a standard monthly premium amount of $458.47 (POS) or $419.17 (HMO 63) or $390.68
(HMO 62) or $389.83 for (NHP HMO) for the employee only coverage based upon their selection.
Additionally, the Board offers an opt out provision for employees who can provide proof of insurance
coverage. Employees who opt out will receive a monthly credit in the amount of $100.00 from which
they can purchase an option consisting of various flexible benefits. Under the fully-insured plan, the
District remits premiums to the carrier for coverage of enrolied employees, retirees and dependents
and no run-off is recognized beyond the premium payment.

Accordingly, liabilities for all retained risks are reported when it is probable that a loss has occurred
and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. The District's estimated liability for self-
insured losses was determined by an independent actuarial valuation performed as of June 30, 2008.
Liabilities, as determined by the actuary, include an amount for claims that have been incurred but
not reported (IBNR). Claims liabilities are calculated considering the effects of inflation, recent claim
settlement trends including frequency and amount of pay-outs and other economic and social factors.
The portion of the liability that is due and payable at June 30, 2008 is recorded in the General Fund
and the remaining portion is recorded in the government-wide financial statements. Liability for
incurred losses to be settled by fixed or reasonably determinable payments over a long period of time
are reported at their present value using expected future investment yield assumptions of 5%. There
was one settlement which exceeded coverages in fiscal year 2007-08 which was as a result of
Legislative claims bill S 40.
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13. ESTIMATED LIABILITY ON INSURANCE RISKS AND PENDING CLAIMS, Continued:

A liability amount of $118,119 (dollars in thousands) was actuarially determined to cover reported and
unreported insurance claims payable at June 30, 2008. It is estimated that of the current portion,
$2,762 is due and payable at June 30, 2008 and $30,290 is due within a year. The remaining
$85,067 will be due in future years.

Estimated Liability For Pending Claims

Current Long-Term Total
Portion Portion
Workers’ compensation $ 26,897 $ 73,305 $ 100,202
General and occupational 4,424 9,540 13,964
Liability
Fleet liability 1,731 2,222 3,953
Total $ 33,052 $ 85,067 $ 118,119

Long-term liabilities for insurance risk and pending claims are presented in accordance with
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 10, Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Risk Financing and Related Insurance Issues, as amended by GASB Statement No.
30, Risk Financing Omnibus, at a 50% confidence level, which is the expected level of claims. The
long-term portion of the liabilities on an undiscounted basis was $126,382, $15,497 and $4,120
(dollars in thousands) for workers’ compensation, general liability, and fleet liability, respectively.

Changes in the balance of claims liabilities as of June 30, 2008 are as follows (in thousands):

Current-year
claims and
changes in
Balance estimates and Claim Balance
July 1, 2006 discounts payment June 30, 2007
Workers' compensation 108,904 27,063 $ (27,581) 108,386
General and
occupational liability 13,961 3,311 (2,613) 14,659
Fleet liability 3,872 2,048 (1,728) 4,192
Total 126,737 32,422 $ (31,922) 127,237
Current-year
claims and
changes in
Balance estimates and Claim Balance
July 1, 2007 discounts payment June 30, 2008
Workers' compensation 108,386 22,754 $ (30,938) 100,202
General and
occupational liability 14,659 830 (1,525) 13,964
Fleet liability 4,192 711 (950) 3,953
Total 127,237 24,295 $ {33,413) 118,119
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14. CHANGES IN LONG-TERM LIABILITIES:

EXHIBIT D-1

Long-term liabilities balances and activity for the year ended June 30, 2008 were as follows (in

thousands):
Amounts
Due
Balance Balance Within

711107 Additions Deductions 6/30/08 One Year
Bonds Payable $ 553,583 $ 8,729 $ (73,817) $ 488,495 * $ 76,105 **
Certificates of 2,068,898 1,073,556 *** (567,623) 2,574,831 **** 118,128 **
Participation
Payable by the
Foundation, net
Capital Leases 97,153 46,089 (10,491) 132,751 21,554
Payable
Notes Payable 124,763 -0- (249) 124,514 515
Insurance Claims 127,237 30,559 (39,678) 118,118 33,052
Payable
Retirement 5,260 -0- (2,121) 3,139 354
Incentive Benefits
Compensated
Absences 260,457 34,618 (20,624) 274,451 16,546
Other Post
Employment -0- 13,452 -0- 13,452 -0-
Benefits
Total $ 3,237,351 $ 1,207,003 $ (714,603) $ 3,729,751 $ 266,255

deke

Fekk

Rk

Includes unamortized premium in the amount of $10,447 less a deferred loss on the

remarketing of $1,392.

Includes principal payments plus unamortized premium less unamortized defetrred loss.

Includes the par value of COPs/QZABs issued in the amount of $1,050,000 plus unamortized

premium of $31,858, less a deferred loss on the remarketing of $8,422.

Exceeds the principal balance of $2,508,445 in Note 11 by $66,386 which represents the net
unamortized premium less an unamortized deferred charge on prior year COP refundings at

June 30, 2008.

Payments for insurance claims, retirement incentive benefits, and compensated absences
are paid by the General Fund. Capital leases are mostly paid from capital project funds.
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15. STATE REVENUE SOURCES:

A major source of the District's revenue is from the state, which provided approximately 37% of total
revenues in fiscal year 2007-08. The following is a schedule of state revenue sources and amounts
(in thousands):

Sources Amount

Florida Education Finance Program 690,734
Workforce Development 99,949
Categorical Educational Programs* 468,556
Gross Receipts Tax (PECO) 40,826
Charter School Capital Outlay Funding 13,207
Class Size Reduction/Capital Funds 54,680
Capital Outlay and Debt Service (CO&DS) Distributed 2,344
Effort Index Grant 2,498
Food Service Supplement 2,630
Adults with Disabilities 2,061
Workforce Education Performance Incentive 1,963
State License Tax 148
Capital Outlay and Debt Service (CO&DS) Withheld For 228
Administrative Expense

CO&DS Withheld for SBE/COBI Bonds 12,578
Interest on Undistributed CO&DS 355
SBE/COBI Bond Interest 109
Miscellaneous 38,241
Total 1,431,107

* Includes $16,873 in District Discretionary Lottery Funds.
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PROPERTY TAXES:

The Board is authorized by state law to levy property taxes for District school operations, capital improvements
and debt service. Property taxes consist of ad valorem taxes on real and personal property within the District.
Property taxes are assessed by the County Property Appraiser and are collected by the County Tax Collector.

Property values are assessed as of January 1 of each year. Taxes are levied after the millage rate is certified in
September. Tax bills are mailed in October and taxes are payable between November 1 of the year assessed
and March 31 of the following year at discounts of up to 4% for early payment.

Taxes become delinquent on April 1 of the year following the year levied. State law provides for enforcement of
collection of real property taxes. First, interest-bearing tax certificates are sold at public auction to recover
delinquent taxes. Finally, if the tax certificates are not paid with accrued interest by the property owner, the
purchaser of the tax certificate is entitled to take possession of the property. Accordingly, substantiaily all of the
taxes assessed for calendar year 2007 have been recognized during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008.

The State Constitution limits the non-voted levying of taxes by the School Board to 10 mills ($10.00 per
thousand of assessed valuation). State law prescribes the upper limit of non-voted taxes to be levied on an
annual basis with the fiscal 2007-08 limit being 7.57 milis, which includes 2.0 mills for the Capital Project Funds.
The total adjusted assessed value for calendar year 2007 on which the fiscal 2008 tevy was based was
approximately $241.5 billion.

Actual property taxes collected and reflected in the table below totaled 96.4% of taxes levied, including
collections from prior years’ tax levies. The Miami-Dade County Tax Collector is not required by law to make an
accounting to the District of the difference between taxes levied and taxes collected. However, because
discounts are aillowed for early payment of taxes and because of other reasons for noncollection, the District
budget anticipates that 95% of taxes levied will be collected.

The following is a summary of millages and taxes levied on the final 2007 tax roll for the fiscal year
2007-08 (in thousands):

Taxes
Millages Levied Collected Uncollected (Net)*
GENERAL FUND
Nonvoted School Tax: 4915 $ 1,186,904 $ 1,148,625 $ 38,279
Required Local Effort
Discretionary Local Effort .655 158,173 153,081 5,092
5.57 $ 1,345,077 $ 1,301,706 $ 43 371
CAPITAL PROJECT
FUNDS
Nonvoted Tax: 2.000 $ 482,972 $ 461813 $ 21,159
Local Capital
Improvements
DEBT SERVICE FUNDS
Voted Tax:
Debt Service
- General Obligation 378 $ 91,282 $ 87,316 $ 3,966
Bonds

The District calculates, based on prior experience, an estimate of uncollectible taxes to apply against the
property tax receivable in the government-wide financial statements. For fiscal year 2007-08, the District
considered $77.9 million or 4.06% of levied taxes as uncollectible.

* Uncollected taxes reflected above differs from taxes receivable since taxes uncollected as of June 30, 2008
from prior year's levies are not included.
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FEDERAL STUDENT FINANCIAL AID :

Federal student financial aid is applied for and received at the following technical/vocational centers:

- Lindsey Hopkins Technical Center

- Hialeah/Miami Lakes Technical Center
- Robert Morgan Technical Center

- George T. Baker Aviation School

- The English Center

The sources of the federal student financial assistance received and reported for financial statement
purposes under a Special Revenue Fund and incorporated in the Schedule of Federal Grants are:

- PELL Grants
- Supplemental Educational Opportunity Grant (S.E.O.G.)

LOCAL FINANCIAL AID :

In an effort to assist disadvantaged students, the District assessed a 10% fee (effective January
1998), in addition to the non-exempt fee collected, intended to be used for financial aid to students
who demonstrate financial need. The monies collected are to be used to cover in-full or in-part the
fees required.

The added fee structure according to the General Appropriations Act, is collected from post-
secondary adult vocational $2.02 (resident) and $8.11 (non-resident). The Continuing Workforce
Education (formerly known as Supplemental Vocational Instructional) fees for resident and non-
resident is $3.96. The total amount collected and paid was $329,874 and $263,921.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

COMPONENT UNITS - CHARTER SCHOOLS:

A total of 63 charter schools operated during fiscal year 2007-08, of which a total of 57 schools were required
to follow Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) financial reporting guidelines. In accordance with
FDOE guidelines, the unaudited financial activity for these schools is presented in the government-wide
financial statements as discretely presented component units. The activities of charter schools do not
materially impact the results of operations of the District. Total unaudited revenues and expenses are
presented below for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008, with the exception of the schools listed with *NA”,
which did not provide a financial report for inclusion; and A Childs Journey, Cooperative Charter Schools,
Liberty City Charter, and Rosa Parks Charter, which were closed during the 2007-08 fiscal year and did not
provide financial reports.

Revenues Expenses
(in thousands) {in thousands)
$ $
Archimedean Academy NA NA
Archimedean Middle Conservatory NA NA
Balere Language Academy NA NA
Charter on the Beach Middle School* 303 320
Charter School at Waterstone 8,092 7.829
Coral Reef Montessori Academy Charter School 3,073 2,704
Doctors Charter School of Miami Shores 4,242 4,301
Doral Academy 5,996 5,510
Doral Academy Charter Middle School 6,818 6,243
Doral Academy High School 8,160 7.264
Doral Performing Arts & Entertainment Academy 372 297
Downtown Miami Charter School 5,007 4,812
Early Beginnings Academy — Civic Center 1,753 1,749
EXce! Academy Charter School NA NA
EXcel Academy Middle Charter School* NA NA
Florida International Academy 2,388 2,406
International Studies Charter High School 2,029 1,890
Keys Gate Charter School 8,784 7,718
Lawrence Academy Middle 859 976
Lawrence Academy Senior High Charter School* 88 104
Life Skills Center — Liberty City* 1,080 1,086
Life Skills Center Miami-Dade County 1,851 1,856
Life Skills Center Opa Locka 1,849 1,822
Mater Academy Charter High School 12,927 12,095
Mater Academy Charter Middle School 8,482 7,840
Mater Academy Charter School 5,529 4 876
Mater Academy East Charter High School* 71 522
Mater Academy East Charter School 3,154 3,087
Mater Academy Lakes High School 1,516 1,272
Mater Academy Lakes Middle School 1,851 1,712
Mater East Academy Middle School 1,269 1,253
Mater Gardens Academy Middle School 597 545
Mater Gardens Academy 2,987 2,788

Mater Performing Arts & Entertainment Academy 1,474 831



EXHIBIT D-1

19.

DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD

OF MIAMI-DADE COUNTY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

COMPONENT UNITS - CHARTER SCHOOLS, Continued:

Miami Children’s Museum Charter School
Miami Community Charter Middle School
Miami Community Charter School*

Oxford Academy of Miami

Pinecrest Academy Charter Middle School
Pinecrest Academy South Campus

Pinecrest Preparatory Academy
Renaissance Elementary Charter School
Renaissance Middle Charter School

Sandor Wiener School of Opportunity — North
Sandor Wiener School of Opportunity — South

School for Integrated Academics & Technologies —
Main Campus

Somerset Academy

Somerset Academy ~ Silver Palms*

Somerset Academy Charter High School

Somerset Academy Charter Middle School

Spirit City Academy

Summerville Advantage Academy*

Theodore R. and Thelma A. Gibson Charter School

Total

Exh. D-1
Dist. Pg 18-LL
Revenues Expenses
{in thousands) (in thousands)
1,220 968
322 208
2,427 2,027
785 774
2,546 2,495
3,660 3,566
3,395 3,138
4,124 3,658
948 829
NA NA
NA NA
2,952 2,715
4,393 4,255
5,761 5,249
300 259
1,108 1,069
NA NA
3,780 3,550
248 219
$ 141,319 $ 130,777

During fiscal year 2007-08, the School Board approved contracts to open and operate an additional
18 new charter schools for the 2008-09 fiscal year.

*

First year reporting under GASB 34 Standards.
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RETIREMENT BENEFITS:

The School Board provides retirement benefits to its employees through the Florida Retirement
System and the Supplemental Early Retirement Plan, as well as state approved post employment
benefits in the form of health insurance premiums.

Florida State Retirement Programs

The School Board participates in the Florida Retirement System (the "System"), a cost sharing
multiple employer public employee retirement system, which is employee noncontributory and is
totally administered by the State of Florida, Department of Management Services, Division of
Retirement. The District's payroll for employees covered by the System for the year ended June 30,
2008 was approximately $2.1 billion; the District's total payroll was over $2.2 billion.

Prior to September 2002 all Florida Retirement System plans were defined benefit plans. Since
September 2002 all covered employees may opt to participate in a defined contribution plan
established by the State of Florida. Participating employers pay to the system a single rate
established annually by the Florida Legislature. Other than a one year vesting requirement, the state
has established no restrictions which would affect when an employee participating in the defined
contribution plan may retire. Only restrictions imposed by the Internal Revenue Service would apply.

All eligible employees participating in the defined benefit plan are those who were hired after 1970;
and, those employed prior to 1970 who elected to be enrolled are covered by the System. A very
small number of employees hired prior to 1970 and not electing to enroll in the Florida Retirement
System are covered by various contributory plans. Benefits under the Florida Retirement System
Pension Plan vest after six years of service. District employees who retire at or after age 62 with six
years of credited service, or with thirty years of service regardless of age, are entitled to an annual
retirement benefit, payable monthly for life, in an amount equal to their average final compensation
multiplied by the total percentage value of their service time. Average final compensation is the
average annual earnings of each employee’s five highest fiscal years. The number of years of
credited service is multiplied by a percentage value from 1.60 - 3.00%, depending on the employee’s
length of service, membership class and age. The System also provides for death and disability
benefits. These benefit provisions and all other requirements are established by Florida Statutes.

Under the System, the District was required to contribute to the plans as of July 1, 2007, 9.85% of the
salary of regular members (both Pension Plan and Investment Plan) and 20.92% of the salary of the
special risk members. The District's contributions to the System for both Regular plan and Special
Risk plan are equal to the annual required contributions for each year as follows (dollars in
thousands):

June 30, 2006 June 30, 2007 June 30, 2008
Florida Retirement System $ 150,226 $ 198,710 $ 207,806
Teacher's Retirement System —
Plan E: Employer $ 86 $ 64 $ 68

The State of Florida issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and
required supplementary information for the System. The latest available report is as of July 1, 2006.
That report may be obtained by writing to the State of Florida Division of Retirement, Department of
Management Services, P.O. Box 9000, Tallahassee, Florida 32315-8000.
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RETIREMENT BENEFITS, Continued:

Supplemental Early Retirement Plan

fn addition to participating in the System, the School Board established an early retirement plan on
July 1, 1984. The plan is a single employer, non-contributory defined benefit plan and is
administered by an independent trustee and investments are managed by the District. The School
Board closed the Suppliemental Early Retirement Plan (the "Plan”) to new employees on July 1, 2003,
with no additional employees vesting after July 1, 2000. The Plan was established in order to
supplement an early retiree's benefits by the amount of reduction imposed by the System. The plan
provides supplemental income for those employees who retired between the ages of 55 to 61 and
who had completed at least 25 years, but not more than 28 years of creditable service. Payments
under the Plan are equal to the difference in monthly retirement income for the participant under the
System between the retirement benefit based on average final compensation, as defined above, and
creditable service as of the member's early retirement date and the early retirement benefit under the
System. Benefits are subject to an annual 3% cost of living adjustment. These benefit provisions and
all other requirements are established by Florida Statute, Section 1012.685.

The total number of retirees and beneficiaries of deceased retirees currently receiving benefits is
680, averaging $508.42 per month. No benefits are provided for terminaticn of employment prior to
retirement.

The School Board’s funding policy provides for actuarially determined periodic contributions sufficient
to pay the benefits provided by this plan when they become due. Plan members do not contribute to
the Plan. Total contributions to the Plan for the 2007-08 fiscal year of $1,840 were made in
accordance with actuarially determined requirements computed through an actuarial valuation
performed as of July 1, 2008.

Valuations to determine the Plan’s contribution requirements are performed every other year at the
beginning of the fiscal year in odd years. The most recent funding valuation was performed July 1,
2008. To determine the Plan’s funding requirements, the Entry Age Actuarial Cost Method was used.
The actuarial cost method is closed group.

Methodology for determination of the contribution requirement has been updated to reflect
assumptions for cost of living increases instead of assumed growth of future payroll since there is no
longer covered payroll under the Plan.

It is intended that the UAAL be amortized over a 9-year period from July 1, 2005, through annual
contributions expressed as a level percentage of each year's assumed cost of living increase of 3%
each year. Assets are valued at fair value, and the investment rate of return is assumed to be
8.75%.

An analysis of funding progress is presented below:

Fiscal Year Annual Percentage of APC Net Pension
Ended June 30, Pension Cost (APC) Contributed Obligation
2008 $ 1,840 100 %
2007 3 2,977 100 %
2006 $ 2,465 100 %

The Plan is included as a Pension Trust fund in the accompanying financial statements.
Contributions are recognized when due. Benefits are recognized when due and payable in
accordance with the terms of the Plan.
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20. RETIREMENT BENEFITS, Continued:

Supplemental Early Retirement Plan, continued:

Investments are reported at fair value and are comprised of the following at June 30, 2008 (amounts
in thousands):

Bonds: Fair Value
CitiGroup Inc. Medium Term Notes 3 408
Daimler Chrysler NA Holding Company Guarantee 1,029
Ford Motor Credit Company Senior Note 1,810
General Motors Corp. Acceptance Notes 735
HouseHold Finance Company Notes 1,039
Lehman Brothers Holdings, Inc. Notes 1,029
SunTrust Bank Medium Term Notes 906

Total Bonds $ 7,056

Commercial Paper:

ING Funding 2,296
Louis Dreyfus Corp. 2,995
UBS Finance 998
Total Commercial Paper 3 6,289

Mutual Funds:

Mutual Funds Closed-End 9,417
Mutual Funds Open-End 6,346
Total Mutual Funds 15,763

Total Investments $ 29,108
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RETIREMENT BENEFITS, Continued:

Other Post Employment Benefits

Plan Description — The School Board has a fully-insured health insurance program for eligible
employees and retirees. Employees who participate in and satisfy the vesting, disability, early or
normal retirement provision of the Florida Retirement System (FRS) may be eligible for Other Post
Employment Benefits (OPEB). Retirees and their dependents are permitted to remain covered under
the District's respective medical plans as long as they pay the premium charged by the insurance
company for the plan and coverage elected. This conforms to the minimum required of Florida
governmental employers per Ch. 112.08, F.S.

As authorized by the Board, employees who retire in the first year of their eligibility under the System
or who retired under the Plan can receive up to $1,200 per year as reimbursement for health
insurance cost paid until they reach 65 years of age or until they become eligible for Medicare or
Social Security disability. Approximately, 326 retirees will receive in October 2008, an estimated
$354,000 in premium reimbursements for the year ended June 30, 2008.

From 1991 through 2005, the District offered retirement incentive programs in an effort to reduce
salary costs. The programs include enhanced insurance benefits up to the Board’s annual monthly
contribution and payments of accrued sick leave at an enhanced rate. Enhanced insurance benefits
offered to eligible employees, as defined under the provision of each program, consist of health and
term life insurance subsidies for up to ten years. Benefit payments accrued under these programs
during fiscal 2008 totaled approximately $2,120,889. Expenditures for the retirement incentive
program are recognized in the General Fund each year on a pay-as-you-go basis. The estimated
liability for retirees receiving benefits of $3,139,029 is fully accrued and included in the government-
wide financial statements.

Funding Policy — The District is not required by law or contractual agreement to provide funding for
OPEB other than the pay-as-you-go amount necessary to provide current benefits to retirees and
eligible dependents. Currently, the Districts OPEB benefits are unfunded. That is, there is not a
separate Trust Fund or equivalent arrangement into which the District would make contributions to
advance-fund the obligation, as it does for its pension plan, the Florida Retirement System (FRS).
Therefore, the ultimate subsidies which are provided over time, are directly financed by general
assets of the District, which are invested in short-term fixed income instruments.

Consequently, according to GASB Statement No. 45, the interest discount rate used to calculate the
present value and costs of the OPEB must be the long-range expected return on such short-term
fixed income instruments. The District selected an interest discount rate of 4.75% for this purpose.

Annual OPEB and Net OPEB Obligation — The District's annual OPEB cost (expense) is calculated
based on the annual required contribution (ARC) of the employer, an amount that was actuarially
determined by using the entry age actuarial cost method (cne of the actual cost methods in
accordance with GASB Statement No. 45), with an amortization of the Unfunded Actuarial Accrued
Liability as a level percent of expected payroll.
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20. RETIREMENT BENEFITS, Continued:
The following table shows the District's OPEB cost for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008:
Annual Required Contribution (ARC) $ 27,122,005
Net OPEB Obligation (NOO) at beginning of year -
Annual Required Contribution 27,122,005
interest on NOO -
Adjustment to ARC -
Annual OPEB Cost (Expense) 27,122,005
Contributions Made (13,670,093)
Increase (decrease) in NOO 13,451,912
Net OPEB Obligation at end of year $ 13,451,912
The District's annual OPEB Cost, the percentage of annual OPEB Cost contributed to the Plan, and
the Net OPEB obligation for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008 were as follows:
Percentage of
Fiscal Year Annual OPEB Amount Annual OPEB Cost Net OPEB
Ending Cost Contributed Contributed Obligation
6/30/2008 $27,122,005 $13,670,093 50.40% $13,451,912
In future years, three year-trend information will be presented. Fiscal year 2007-08 was the year of
implementation of GASB Statement No. 45.
Funded Status and Funding Progress — As of October 1, 2006, the initial actuarial valuation, the
funded status of the plans as of June 30, 2008, was as follows:
UAAL as a
Actuarial Actuarial Percentage of
Actuarial Vaiue of Accrued Unfunded Funded Covered
Valuation Assets Liability (AAL) - AAL (UAAL) Ratio Covered Payroll Payroll
Date (a) Entry Age (b) {(b-a) (a/b) {c) ([b-a]/c}
10/1/2006 $0 $322,766,143 $322,766,143 0.00% $1,619,402,666 19.93%

The State of Florida prohibits the District from separately rating retirees and active employees. The
District therefore charges both groups an equal, blended rate premium. Although both groups are
charged the same blended rate premium, GAAP require the actuarial figures presented above {o be
calculated using age adjusted premiums approximating claims costs for retirees separate from active
employees. The use of age adjusted premiums results in the addition of an implicit rate subsidy into
the actuarial accrued liability.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions —~ Calculations of benefits for financial reporting purposes are
based on the substantive plan (the plan as understood by the employer and plan members) and
include the types of benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of
sharing of benefit costs between the employer and plan members to that point. The actuarial
methods and assumptions used are designed to reduce short-term volatility in actuarial accrued
liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the
calculations.
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21. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

A. Commitments

As part of its capital outlay program, the District has entered into various construction
commitments totaling approximately $460 million as of June 30, 2008. (See Note 4)

The District leases certain facilities and equipment under various cancelable, operating lease
agreements. The total rent expense for fiscal year ended June 30, 2008 under these leases
was approximately $8.8 million.

B. Contingencies
Florida Education Finance Program and Federal, State and Local Grants

The School Board receives funding from the State of Florida under the Florida Education
Finance Program, which is based in part on a computation of the number of students
attending different types of instruction ("FTE" Computation). The accuracy of data compiled
by individual schools supporting the FTE Computation is subject to audit by the state and, if
found to be in error, could result in refunds to the state or in decreases to future funding
allocations. Additionally, the School Board participates in a number of federal, state and
local grants which are subject to financial and compliance audits. [t is the opinion of
management that the amount of revenue, if any, which may be remitted back to the state due
to errors in the FTE Computation or the amount of grant expenditures which may be
disallowed by grantor agencies would not be material to the financial position of the District.

Reimbursements to the General Fund from the Local Optional Millage Levy

The District recorded a reimbursement to the General Fund from the Local Optional Millage
Levy (LOML) in the Capital Project Funds in the amount of $9.8 million which represents the
additional amount required to cover 100% of property/flood insurance premiums for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2008. In the opinion of management, the District complied with the
certification requirements of Section 1011.71, Florida Statutes, as stated in the 2007
Legislative session. As such, the District was entitled by existing law and reliance on the law
to pay for the entire amount of the property insurance premiums from the LOML fund. The
District intends to use its vested right under the existing legislation at the time it developed
and received approval for the 2007-08 Budget.

Additionally, the District recorded a reimbursement to the General Fund from the LOML in
the Capital Project Funds in the amount of $1.1 million, relating to the purchase of software
disallowed by the Auditor General in the 2006-07 audit. This amount was restored to the
LOML fund at the direction of the Florida Department of Education during this fiscal year. In
the opinion of management and based on multiple legal opinions, software purchases with
capital funds are eligible expenditures under Section 1011.71, F.S.
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COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES, Continued

C.

Litigation

The School Board is a defendant in numerous lawsuits as of June 30, 2008. In the opinion
of management, the District estimated aggregate liability, with respect to probable losses,
has been provided for in the estimated liability for insurance risks and pending claims in the
accompanying financial statements, after giving consideration to the District's related
insurance coverage, as well as the Florida statutory limitations of governmental liability on
uninsured risks. It is the opinion of management and District legal counsel that the amount
of losses resulting, if any, from the above-mentioned litigation in excess of the amount
accrued as of June 30, 2008, would not be material to the financial position of the District.
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22. FUND BALANCES:

The following analysis is provided to expand upon what is shown on the face of the fund financial
statements (in thousands):

Governmental Major Funds:

Section Other
Other 1011.14 Capital Capital Non-
General Debt F.S. Improvement Projects major
Fund Service Loans LOML Funds Funds ™ Total
Categorical $ 8,291 $ - $ $ - 3 - $ - $ 8,291
Carryover
Programs
Encumbrances 16,869 52,600 69,638 308,459 9,047 457,513
Inventory 2,238 2,239
Debt Service - 21,462 - - 70,695 92,157
Funds
Unreserved: 2,243 * 102,869 ** 395,734 * 186,979 517,825
Designated
Undesignated 4,857 (120,647) {115,690)
Total Fund
Balance $ 32,360 $ 21,462 $ (68,047) $ 172,507 $ 704,193 $ 99,860 $ 962,335

Designated fund balance for the General Fund represent available balances that could be
reappropriated by the School Board for other purposes during the subsequent fiscal year. In
accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles, these funds can also be considered as
unreserved.

Jode

Includes the unexpended balance of state-funded construction projects as of June 30, 2008,
approved by the Florida Department of Education for Restricted Capital Projects.

Aggregates all of the District’s Non-major fund balances.
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SUBSEQUENT EVENTS:

Refunding/Conversion of Certificates of Participation

On August 1, 2008 the District issued $57.77 million Series 2008C Certificates of Participation (COP)
for the purpose of refunding $57.44 million of COP Series 2003A term rate certificates (refinanced
the 1998B Facilities) under a mandatory tender. The Series 2008C COP was issued without bond
insurance as Variable Rate Certificates with an irrevocable direct pay letter of credit and have an
associated Interest Rate Swap resulting in a synthetic fixed rate of 3.909%, net of Letter of Credit and
Remarketing fees.

Also on August 1, 2008 the District converted $65.94 million and $66.26 million of the COP Series
2002A and 2002B respectively, from a 0.30% plus LIBOR based index to a 0.75% plus SIFMA
(Securities Industry and Financial Markets Association) based index. Both Series had been issued
as auction rate securities and were privately placed under the LIBOR based index interest rate reset
mode during the fiscal year.

Educational Broadband Service Lease Agreement

On June 27, 2008 the District entered into a Long-Term De Facto Lease Agreement with Clearwire
Spectrum Holdings 1l LLC, "Clearwire” for the lease of Educational Broadband Service (EBS)
Licenses. This agreement will afford the District the opportunity to present greater quantities of
educational and instructional programming, as well as, generate a recurring stream of revenues.

The District filed the FCC applications on July 28, 2008. On August 27, 2008 the District received
notice of the FCC approval for the Clearwire Long-Term De Facto lease with respect to EBS Stations
KTB84, WHAS76, and WHG230.
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Variance with
Account Budgeted Amounts Actual Final Budget -
Number Original Final Amounts Positive (Negative)
REVENUES
Federal Direct 3100 2,490,000.00 2,122,551.00 2,122,551.03 0.03
Federal Through State and Local 3200 15,153,391.00 16,698,546.00 16,698,546.15 0.15
State Sources 3300 1,361,928,614.00 1,287,430,007.00 1,287,430,007.39 0.39
Local Sources:
Property Taxes Levied for Operational Purposes 3411 1,309,346,471.00 1,286,264,985.00 1,286,264,984.85 (0.15)
Property Taxes Levied for Debt Service 3412
Property Taxes Levied for Capital Projects 3413
Local Sales Taxes 3418
Other Local Revenue 80,893,701.00 94,595,002.00 94,595,001.99 (0.0
Total Local Sources 3400 1,390,240,172.00 1,380,859,987.00 1,380,859,986.84 (0.16)
Total Revenues 2,769,812,177.00 2,687,111,091.00 2,687,111,091.41 0.41
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Instruction 5000 2,004,562,460.00 1,858,732,531.00 1,848,977,255.40 9,755,275.60
Pupil Personnel Services 6100 135,507,436.00 140,842,803.00 138,374,717.99 2,468,085.01
Instructional Media Services 6200 42,080,151.00 45,844,995.00 45,189,744.70 655,250.30
Instruction and Curriculum Development Services 6300 26,555,373.00 33,690,679.00 33,366,192.83 324,486.17
Instructional Staff Training Services 6400 11,803,113.00 18,823,401.00 18,770,884.81 52,516.19
Instruction Related Technology 6500 38,477,883.00 38,690,166.00 37,763,190.38 926,975.62
School Board 7100 7,459,512.00 6,864,931.00 6,694,027.45 170,503.55
General Administration 7200 11,562,248.00 10,891,371.00 10,684,484.61 206,886.39
School Administration 7300 173,088,261.00 190,734,732.00 189,964,631.40 770,100.60
Facilities Acquisition and Construction 7410 102,457.00 85,403.00 85,403.00
Fiscal Services 7500 22,223,473.00 20,836,550.00 20,635,334.24 201,215.76
Food Services 7600
Central Services 7700 15,264,442.00 71,802,901.00 68,284,179.79 3,518,721.21
Pupil Transportation Services 7800 85,955,674.00 91,758,709.00 91,291,212.88 467,496.12
Operation of Plant 7900 271,521,496.00 313,116,918.00 311,026,348.55 2,090,569.45
Maintenance of Plant 8100 117,569,428.00 120,217,552.00 118,130,694.19 2,086,857.81
Administrative Technology Services 8200 1,289,271.00 1,260,642.00 1,173,667.09 86,974.91
Community Services 9100 35,880,368.00 41,010,264.00 40,560,473.84 449,790.16
Debt Service: (Function 9200)
Retirement of Principal 710 1,229,240.51 (1,229,240.51)
Interest 720 308,758.39 (308,758.39)
Dues, Fees and Issuance Costs 730
Miscellaneous Expenditures 790
Capital Outlay:
Facilities Acquisition and Construction 7420 85,402.92 (85,402.92)
Other Capital Outlay 9300 5,825,554.43 (5,825,554.43)
Total Expenditures 3,000,903,046.00 3,005,204,548.00 2,988,335,996.40 16,868,551.60
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (231,090,869.00) (318,093,457.00) (301,224,504.99) 16,868,552.01
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Long-Term Bonds Issued 3710
Premium on Sale of Bonds 3791
Discount on Sale of Bonds 891
Refunding Bonds Issued 3715
Premium on Refunding Bonds 3792
Discount on Refunding Bonds 892
Certificates of Participation Issued 3750
Premium on Certificates of Participation 3793
Discount on Certificates of Participation 893
Proceeds from Loans/Leases 3720 851,438.00 851,438.02 0.02
Proceeds from the Sale of Capital Assets 3730 350,312.00 350,312.47 0.47
Loss Recoveries 3740 13,263.00 13,262.71 (0.29)
Proceeds of Forward Supply Contract 3760
Special Facilities Construction Advances 3770
Payments to Refunded Bond Escrow Agent (Function 9299) 760
Transfers In 3600 148,905,643.00 209,370,516.00 209,370,515.83 (0.17)
Transfers Out 9700 (14,382,231.00) (14,382,231.00)
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 148,905,643.00 196,203,298.00 196,203,298.03 0.03
SPECIAL ITEMS
EXTRAORDINARY ITEMS
Net Change in Fund Balances (82,185,226.00) (121,890,159.00) (105,021,606.96) 16,868,552.04
Fund Balances, July 1, 2007 2800 151,321,445.00 137,381,797.00 137,381,796.68 (0.32)
Adjustment to Fund Balances 2891
Fund Balances, June 30, 2008 2700 69,136,219.00 15,491,638.00 32,360,189.72 16,868,551.72
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DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF MIAMI DADE COUNTY
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

Exhibit E-2
District Page 20

Variance with

Account Budgeted Amounts Actual Final Budget -
Number Original Final Amounts Positive (Negative)

REVENUES

Federal Direct 3100

Federal Through State and Local 3200

State Sources 3300

Local Sources:

Property Taxes Levied for Operational Purposes 3411
Property Taxes Levied for Debt Service 3412
Property Taxes Levied for Capital Projects 3413
Local Sales Taxes 3418
Other Local Revenue

Total Local Sources 3400

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES

Current:

Instruction 5000
Pupil Personnel Services 6100
Instructional Media Services 6200
Instruction and Curriculum Development Services 6300
Instructional Staff Training Services 6400
Instruction Related Technology 6500
School Board 7100
General Administration 7200
School Administration 7300
Facilities Acquisition and Construction 7410
Fiscal Services 7500
Food Services 7600
Central Services 7700
Pupil Transportation Services 7800
Operation of Plant 7900
Maintenance of Plant 8100
Administrative Technology Services 8200
Community Services 9100
Debt Service: (Function 9200)
Retirement of Principal 710
Interest 720
Dues, Fees and Issuance Costs 730
Miscellaneous Expenditures 790

Capital Outlay:

Facilities Acquisition and Construction 7420
QOther Capital Outlay 9300
Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over {Under) Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Long-Term Bonds Issued 3710
Premium on Sale of Bonds 3791
Discount on Sale of Bonds 891

Refunding Bonds Issued 3715
Premium on Refunding Bonds 3792
Discount on Refunding Bonds 892

Certificates of Participation Issued 3750
Premium on Certificates of Participation 3793
Discount on Certificates of Participation 893

Proceeds from Loans/Leases 3720

Proceeds from the Sale of Capital Assets 3730

Loss Recoveries 3740

Proceeds of Forward Supply Contract 3760

Special Facilities Construction Advances 3770

Payments to Refunded Bond Escrow Agent (Function 9299) 760

Transfers In 3600

Transfers Out 9700

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

SPECIAL ITEMS

EXTRAORDINARY ITEMS
Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balances, July 1, 2007 2800

Adjustment to Fund Balances 2891

Fund Balances, June 30, 2008 2700
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DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF MIAMI DADE COUNTY

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
June 30, 2008

Total
Nonmajor
Account Governmental
Number Funds
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents 1110 81,886.56
Investments 1160 101,372,342.57
Taxes Receivable, Net 1120 6,653,977.73
Accounts Receivable, Net 1130 192,465.98
Interest Receivable 1170 464,906.18
Due from Reinsurer 1180
Deposits Receivable 1210
Due From Other Funds:
Budgetary Funds 1141 899,000.15
Internal Funds 1142
Due from Other Agencies 1220 62,148,688.10
Inventory 1150 2,818,145.43
Prepaid Items 1230
Total Assets 174,631,412.70
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES
Salaries, Benefits and Payroll Taxes Payable 2110 4,000,424.26
Payroll Deductions and Withholdings 2170 562,602.39
Accounts Payable 2120 8,101,748.93
Judgments Payable 2130
Construction Contracts Payable 2140 1,171,398.25
Construction Contracts Payable-Retained Percentage 2150 2,073,738.79
Due to Fiscal Agent 2240
Notes Payable 2250
Sales Tax Payable 2260
Est Liab on Pending Claims 2270
Accrued Interest Payable 2210
Liability for Compensated Absences 2330
Deposits Payable 2220
Due to Other Agencies 2230 3,217,206.43
Due to Other Funds:
Budgetary Funds 2161 52,037,766.11
Internal Funds 2162
Deferred Revenue:
Unearned Revenue 2410 2,666,264.26
Unavailable Revenue 2410
Estimated Liability on Arbitrage Rebate 2280 940,616.58
Total Liabilities 74,771,766.00
FUND BALANCES
Reserved for:
Prepaid Expenses 2705
State Required Carryover Programs 2710
Encumbrances 2720 9,947,176.77
Inventory 2730 2,238,706.28
Debt Service Funds 2750 70,694,864.08
Unreserved, Reported in:
General Fund 2760
Designated for Est Rebudgets and Obligations 2766
Undesignated 2769
Special Revenue Funds 2760 (2,130,230.00)
Debt Service Funds 2760
Capital Projects Funds 2760
Designated for Capital Projects 2766 19,109,129.57
Undesignated 2769
Permanent Funds 2760
Total Fund Balances 2700 99,859,646.70

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances

174,631,412.70

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF MIAMI DADE COUNTY

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

Exhibit F-2a
District Page 25

Special Revenue Funds
Food Other Federal Miscellaneous Total Nonmajor
Account Service Programs Special Revenue Special Revenue
Number 410 420 490 Funds
REVENUES
Federal Direct 3100 21,386,394.77 21,386,394.77
Federal Through State and Local 3200 94,180,247.98 299,914,216.87 394,094,464.85
State Sources 3300 2,667,629.00 2,667,629.00
Local Sources:
Property Taxes Levied for Operational Purposes 3411
Property Taxes Levied for Debt Service 3412
Property Taxes Levied for Capital Projects 3413
Local Sales Taxes 3418
Other Local Revenue 38,663,607.73 3,990,958.05 288,900.70 42,943,466.48
Total Local Sources 3400 38,663,607.73 3,990,958.05 288,900.70 42,943,466.48
Total Revenues 135,511,484.71 325,291,569.69 288,900.70 461,091,955.10
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Instruction 5000 214,918,577.08 214,918,577.08
Pupil Personnel Services 6100 27,437,034.56 27,437,034.56
Instructional Media Services 6200 2,610,562.95 2,610,562.95
Instruction and Curriculum Development Services 6300 42,623,913.82 42,623,913.82
Instructional Staff Training Services 6400 21,955,719.06 21,955,719.06
Ingtruction Related Technology 6500 15,344.07 15,344.07
School Board 7100
General Administration 7200 7,939,020.84 7,939,020.84
School Administration 7300 131,418.63 131,418.63
Facilities Acquisition and Construction 7410 374.61 374.61
Fiscal Services 7500 102,797.01 102,797.01
Food Services 7600 147,587,434.41 147,587,434.41
Central Services 7700 556,582.96 556,582.96
Pupil Transportation Services 7800 2,707,981.02 2,707,981.02
Operation of Plant 7900 1,328.57 292,385.91 293,714.48
Maintenance of Plant 8100
Administrative Technology Services 8200 44,237.54 44,237.54
Community Services 9100 965,585.39 193,321.69 1,158,907.08
Debt Service: (Function 9200)
Retirement of Principal 710
Interest 720
Dues, Fees and Issuance Costs 730
Miscellaneous Expenditures 790
Capital Outlay:
Facilities Acquisition and Construction 7420
Other Capital Outlay 9300 3,281,091.58 3,281,091.58
Total Expenditures 147,587,434.41 325,291,569.69 485,707.60 473,364,711.70
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (12,075,949.70) (196,806.90) (12,272,756.60)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Long-Term Bonds Issued 3710
Premium on Sale of Bonds 3791
Discount on Sale of Bonds (Function 9299) 891
Refunding Bonds Issued 3715
Premium on Refunding Bonds 3792
Discount on Refunding Bonds (Function 9299) 892
Certificates of Participation Issued 3750
Premium on Certificates of Participation 3793
Discount on Certificates of Participation (Function 9299) 893
Proceeds from Loans/Leases 3720
Proceeds from the Sale of Capital Assets 3730
Loss Recoveries 3740 50,514.00 50,514.00
Proceeds of Forward Supply Contract 3760
Special Facilities Construction Advances 3770
Payments to Refunded Bond Escrow Agent (Function 9299) 760
Transfers In 3600 11,900,000.00 11,900,000.00
Transfers Out 9700
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 11,950,514.00 11,950,514.00
SPECIAL ITEMS
EXTRAORDINARY ITEMS
Net Change in Fund Balances (125,435.70) (196,806.90) (322,242.60)
Fund Balances, July 1, 2007 2800 204,802.46 630,309.56 835,112.02
Adjustment to Fund Balances 2891
Fund Balances, June 30, 2008 2700 79,366.76 433,502.66 512,869.42

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Exhibit F-2b

DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF MIAMI DADE COUNTY District Page 26

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES (CONTINUED)

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

Debt Service Funds
Account| SBE/COBI Bonds District Bonds Total Nonmajor
Number 210 250 Debt Service Funds
REVENUES
Federal Direct 3100
Federal Through State and Local 3200
State Sources 3300 12,687,028.41 12,687,028.41
Local Sources:
Property Taxes Levied for Operational Purposes 3411
Property Taxes Levied for Debt Service 3412 87,316,174.53 87,316,174.53
Property Taxes Levied for Capital Projects 3413
Local Sales Taxes 3418
Other Local Revenue 1,325,601.33 1,325,601.33
Total Local Sources 3400 88,641,775.86 88,641,775.86
Total Revenues 12,687,028.41 88,641,775.86 101,328,804.27
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Instruction 5000
Pupil Personnel Services 6100
Instructional Media Services 6200
Instruction and Curriculum Development Services 6300
Instructional Staff Training Services 6400
Instruction Related Technology 6500
Schoo] Board 7100
General Administration 7200
School Administration 7300
Facilities Acquisition and Construction 7410
Fiscal Services 7500
Food Services 7600
Central Services 7700
Pupil Transportation Services 7800
Operation of Plant 7900
Maintenance of Plant 8100
Administrative Technology Services 8200
Community Services 9100
Debt Service: (Function 9200)
Retirement of Principal 710 8,070,000.00 62,440,000.00 70,510,000.00
Interest 720 4,786,515.00 20,933,678.16 25,720,193.16
Dues, Fees and Issuance Costs 730 10,131.24 10,131.24
Miscellaneous Expenditures 790
Capital Outlay:
Facilities Acquisition and Construction 7420
Other Capital Outlay 9300
Total Expenditures 12,866,646.24 83,373,678.16 96,240,324.40
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (179,617.83) 5,268,097.70 5,088,479.87
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Long-Term Bonds Issued 3710
Premium on Sale of Bonds 3791
Discount on Sale of Bonds (Function 9299) 891
Refunding Bonds Issued/Certificates of Participation 3715
Premium on Refunding Bonds/Certificates of Participation 3792
Discount on Refunding Bonds (Function 9299) 892
Certificates of Participation Issued 3750
Premium on Certificates of Participation 3793
Discount on Certificates of Participation (Function 9299) 893
Proceeds from Loans/Leases 3720
Proceeds from the Sale of Capital Assets 3730
Loss Recoveries 3740
Proceeds of Forward Supply Contract 3760
Special Facilities Construction Advances 3770
Payments to Refunded Bond Escrow Agent (Function 9299) 760
Transfers In 3600
Transfers Out 9700
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)
SPECIAL ITEMS
EXTRAORDINARY ITEMS
Net Change in Fund Balances (179,617.83) 5,268,097.70 5,088,479.87
Fund Balances, July 1, 2007 2800 2,769,084.95 62,837,299.26 65,606,384.21
Adjustment to Fund Balances 2891
Fund Balances, June 30, 2008 2700 2,589,467.12 68,105,396.96 70,694,864.08

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Exhibit F-2d

DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF MIAMI DADE COUNTY District Page 28

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES (CONTINUED)

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

Total
Account Nonmajor
Number | Governmental Funds

REVENUES

Federal Direct 3100 21,386,394.77

Federal Through State and Local 3200 394,094,464.85

State Sources 3300 72,085,948.48

Local Sources:

Property Taxes Levied for Operational Purposes 3411
Property Taxes Levied for Debt Service 3412 87,316,174.53
Property Taxes Levied for Capital Projects 3413
Local Sales Taxes 3418
Other Local Revenue 45,286,256.64
Total Local Sources 3400 132,602,431.17

Total Revenues 620,169,239.27

EXPENDITURES

Current:

Instruction 5000 214,918,577.08
Pupil Personnel Services 6100 27,437,034.56
Instructional Media Services 6200 2,610,562.95
Instruction and Curriculum Development Services 6300 42,623,913.82
Instructional Staff Training Services 6400 21,955,719.06
Instruction Related Technology 6500 15,344.07
School Board 7100

General Administration 7200 7,939,020.84
School Administration 7300 131,418.63
Facilities Acquisition and Construction 7410 18,144,026.19
Fiscal Services 7500 102,797.01
Food Services 7600 147,587,434.41
Central Services 7700 556,582.96
Pupil Transportation Services 7800 2,707,981.02
Operation of Plant 7900 293,714.48
Maintenance of Plant 8100

Administrative Technology Services 8200 44,237.54
Community Services 9100 1,158,907.08

Debt Service: (Function 9200)

Retirement of Principal 710 70,510,000.00
Interest 720 25,720,193.16
Dues, Fees and Issuance Costs 730 56,959.04
Miscellaneous Expenditures 790

Capital Outlay:

Facilities Acquisition and Construction 7420 14,613,164.29
Other Capital Outlay 9300 3,281,091.58
Total Expenditures 602,408,679.77

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures 17,760,559.50

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Long-Term Bonds Issued 3710 8,425,000.00
Premium on Sale of Bonds 3791 304,186.05
Discount on Sale of Bonds (Function 9299) 891

Refunding Bonds Issued/Certificates of Participation 3715
Premium on Refunding Bonds/Certificates of Participation 3792
Discount on Refunding Bonds (Function 9299) 892

Certificates of Participation Issued 3750
Premium on Certificates of Participation 3793
Discount on Certificates of Participation (Function 9299) 893

Proceeds from Loans/Leases 3720

Proceeds from the Sale of Capital Assets 3730

Loss Recoveries 3740 50,514.00

Proceeds of Forward Supply Contract 3760

Special Facilities Construction Advances 3770

Payments to Refunded Bond Escrow Agent (Function 9299) 760

Transfers In 3600 11,900,000.00

Transfers Out 9700 (35,586,346.00)

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (14,906,645.95)

SPECIAL ITEMS ‘

EXTRAORDINARY ITEMS
Net Change in Fund Balances 2,853,913.55

Fund Balances, July 1, 2007 2800 97,005,733.15

Adjustment to Fund Balances 2891

Fund Balances, June 30, 2008 2700 99,859,646.70

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Exhibit G-1
District Page 29
DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF MIAMI DADE COUNTY
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS (NONMAJOR)
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

Variance with
Account Budgeted Amounts Actual Final Budget -
Number Original Final Amounts Positive (Negative)
REVENUES
Federal Direct 3100 21,386,394.77 21,386,394.77
Federal Through State and Local 3200 356,273,356.00 422,237,064.23 394,094,464.85 (28,142,599.38)
State Sources 3300 2,774,000.00 2,667,629.00 2,667,629.00
Local Sources:
Property Taxes Levied for Operational Purposes 3411
Property Taxes Levied for Debt Service 3412
Property Taxes Levied for Capital Projects 3413
Local Sales Taxes 3418
Other Local Revenue 43,689,249.00 48,741,747.00 42,943,466.48 (5,798,280.52)
Total Local Sources 3400 43,689,249.00 48,741,747.00 42,943,466.48 (5,798,280.52)
Total Revenues 402,736,605.00 495,032,835.00 461,091,955.10 (33,940,879.90)
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Instruction 5000 181,688,039.00 232,378,079.00 214,918,577.08 17,459,501.92
Pupil Personnel Services 6100 21,080,537.00 32,152,489.00 27,437,034.56 4,715,454.44
Instructional Media Services 6200 1,951,361.00 3,362,557.00 2,610,562.95 751,994.05
Instruction and Curriculum Development Services 6300 29,299,815.00 52,356,991.00 42,623,913.82 9,733,077.18
Instructional Staff Training Services 6400 21,503,399.00 24,911,530.00 21,955,719.06 2,955,810.94
Instruction Related Technology 6500 712,552.00 58,037.00 15,344.07 42,692.93
School Board 7100
General Administration 7200 5,162,671.00 8,714,887.00 7,939,020.84 775,866.16
School Administration 7300 175,585.00 154,366.00 131,418.63 22,947.37
Facilities Acquisition and Construction 7410 172,147.00 441.00 374.61 66.39
Fiscal Services 7500 319,361.00 120,747.00 102,797.01 17,949.99
Food Services 7600 137,193,634.00 147,587,435.00 147,587,434.41 0.59
Central Services 7700 916,000.00 653,771.00 556,582.96 97,188.04
Pupil Transportation Services 7800 205,044.00 3,180,840.00 2,707,981.02 472,858.98
Operation of Plant 7900 615,380.00 293,947.00 293,714.48 232.52
Maintenance of Plant 8100
Administrative Technology Services 8200 93,074.00 51,962.00 44,237.54 7,724.46
Community Services 9100 1,881,126.00 1,327,513.00 1,158,907.08 168,605.92
Debt Service: (Function 9200)
Retirement of Principal 710
Interest 720
Dues, Fees and Issuance Costs 730
Miscellaneous Expenditures 790
Capital Outlay:
Facilities Acquisition and Construction 7420
Other Capital Outlay 9300 3,281,091.58 (3,281,091.58)
Total Expenditures 402,969,725.00 507,305,592.00 473,364,711.70 33,940,880.30
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (233,120.00) (12,272,757.00) (12,272,756.60) 0.40
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Long-Term Bonds Issued 3710
Premium on Sale of Bonds 3791
Discount on Sale of Bonds (Function 9299) 891
Refunding Bonds Issued 3715
Premium on Refunding Bonds 3792
Discount on Refunding Bonds (Function 9299) 892
Certificates of Participation Issued 3750
Premium on Certificates of Participation 3793
Discount on Certificates of Participation (Function 9299) 893
Proceeds from Loans/Leases 3720
Proceeds from the Sale of Capital Assets 3730
Loss Recoveries 3740 50,514.00 50,514.00
Proceeds of Forward Supply Contract 3760
Special Facilities Construction Advances 3770
Payments'to Refunded Bond Escrow Agent (Function 9299) 760
Transfers In 3600 11,900,000.00 11,900,000.00
Transfers Out 9700
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 11,950,514.00 11,950,514.00
SPECIAL ITEMS
EXTRAORDINARY ITEMS
Net Change in Fund Balances (233,120.00) (322,243.00) (322,242.60) 0.40
Fund Balances, July 1, 2007 2800 835,111.56 835,112.00 835,112.02 0.02
Adjustment to Fund Balances 2891
Fund Balances, June 30, 2008 2700 601,991.56 512,869.00 512,869.42 0.42
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DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF MIAMI DADE COUNTY
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

Exhibit G-2
District Page 30

DEBT SERVICE FUNDS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008
Variance with
Account Budgeted Amounts Actual Final Budget -
Number Original Final Amounts Positive (Negative)
REVENUES
Federal Direct 3100
Federal Through State and Local 3200
State Sources 3300 12,856,515.00 12,687,028.00 12,687,028.41 0.41
Local Sources:
Property Taxes Levied for Operational Purposes 3411
Property Taxes Levied for Debt Service 3412 88,856,906.00 87,316,175.00 87,316,174.53 (0.47)
Property Taxes Levied for Capital Projects 3413
Local Sales Taxes 3418
Other Local Revenue 1,416,000.00 2,603,602.00 2,603,602.42 0.42
Total Local Sources 3400 90,272,906.00 89,919,777.00 89,919,776.95 (0.05)
Total Revenues 103,129,421.00 102,606,805.00 102,606,805.36 0.36
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Instruction 5000
Pupil Personnel Services 6100
Instructional Media Services 6200
Instruction and Curriculum Development Services 6300
Instructional Staff Training Services 6400
Instruction Related Technology 6500
School Board 7100
General Administration 7200
School Administration 7300
Facilities Acquisition and Construction 7410
Fiscal Services 7500
Food Services 7600
Central Services 7700
Pupil Transportation Services 7800
Operation of Plant 7900
Maintenance of Plant 8100
Administrative Technology Services 8200
Community Services 9100
Debt Service: (Function 9200)
Retirement of Principal 710 129,404,690.00 407,819,690.00 407,819,690.31 (0.31)
Interest 720 121,146,634.00 120,757,445.00 120,757,444.65 0.35
Dues, Fees and Issuance Costs 730 2,901,684.00 2,901,684.68 (0.68)
Miscellaneous Expenditures 790
Capital Outlay:
Facilities Acquisition and Construction 7420
Other Capital Outlay 9300
Total Expenditures 250,551,324.00 531,478,819.00 531,478,819.64 (0.64)
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (147,421,903.00) (428,872,014.00) (428,872,014.28) (0.28)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Long-Term Bonds Issued 3710
Premium on Sale of Bonds 3791
Discount on Sale of Bonds (Function 9299) 891
Refunding Bonds Issued 3715 511,815,000.00 511,815,000.00
Premium on Refunding Bonds 3792 14,150,751.00 14,150,750.50 (0.50)
Discount on Refunding Bonds (Function 9299) 8§92
Certificates of Participation Issued 3750
Premium on Certificates of Participation 3793
Discount on Certificates of Participation (Function 9299) 893
Proceeds from Loans/Leases 3720
Proceeds from the Sale of Capital Assets 3730
Loss Recoveries 3740
Proceeds of Forward Supply Contract 3760
Special Facilities Construction Advances 3770
Payments to Refunded Bond Escrow Agent (Function 9299) 760 (245,279,113.00) (245,279,112.50) 0.50
Transfers In 3600 157,133,176.00 157,804,990.00 157,804,990.07 0.07
Transfers Out 9700
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 157,133,176.00 438,491,628.00 438,491,628.07 0.07
SPECIAL ITEMS
EXTRAORDINARY ITEMS
Net Change in Fund Balances 9,711,273.00 9,619,614.00 9,619,613.79 (0.21)
Fund Balances, July 1, 2007 2800 82,537,719.00 82,537,719.00 82,537,719.44 0.44
Adjustment to Fund Balances 2891
Fund Balances, June 30, 2008 2700 92,248,992.00 92,157,333.00 92,157,333.23 0.23
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DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF MIAMI DADE COUNTY
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

Exhibit G-3
District Page 31

Variance with

Account Budgeted Amounts Actual Final Budget -
Number Original Final Amounts Positive (Negative)

REVENUES

Federal Direct 3100

Federal Through State and Local 3200

State Sources 3300 107,164,531.00 134,877,762.00 128,321,869.07 (6,555,892.93)

Local Sources:

Property Taxes Levied for Operational Purposes 3411

Property Taxes Levied for Debt Service 3412

Property Taxes Levied for Capital Projects 3413 470,142,359.00 461,813,383.00 461,813,383.29 0.29
Local Sales Taxes 3418

Other Local Revenue 58,764,955.00 48,651,853.00 48,651,852.63 (0.37)
Total Local Sources 3400 528,907,314.00 510,465,236.00 510,465,235.92 (0.08),

Total Revenues 636,071,845.00 645,342,998.00 638,787,104.99 (6,555,893.01)

EXPENDITURES

Current:

Instruction 5000

Pupil Personnel Services 6100

Instructional Media Services 6200

Instruction and Curriculum Development Services 6300

Instructional Staff Training Services 6400

Instruction Related Technology 6500

School Board 7100

General Administration 7200

School Administration 7300

Facilities Acquisition and Construction 7410 1,963,884,366.00 1,133,779,294.00 289,924,655.49 843,854,638.51
Fiscal Services 7500

Food Services 7600

Central Services 7700

Pupil Transportation Services 7800

Operation of Plant 7900

Maintenance of Plant 8100

Administrative Technology Services 8200

Community Services 9100

Debt Service: (Function 9200)

Retirement of Principal 710

Interest 720 3,085,631.00 6,659,136.00 6,659,135.51 0.49
Dues, Fees and Issuance Costs 730 256,714.00 6,363,952.00 6,397,534.12 (33,582.12)
Miscellaneous Expenditures 790

Capital Qutlay:

Facilities Acquisition and Construction 7420 645,646,840.00 645,646,840.27 (0.27)
Other Capital Qutlay 9300
Total Expenditures 1,967,226,711.00 1,792,449,222.00 948,628,165.39 843,821,056.61

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (1,331,154,866.00) (1,147,106,224.00) (309,841,060.40) 837,265,163.60

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Long-Term Bonds Issued 3710 8,689,602.00 8,425,000.00 (264,602.00)
Premium on Sale of Bonds 3791 304,186.05 304,186.05
Discount on Sale of Bonds (Function 9299) 891

Refunding Bonds Issued 3715
Premium on Refunding Bonds 3792
Discount on Refunding Bonds (Function 9299) 892

Certificates of Participation Issued 3750 550,000,000.00 538,305,000.00 538,305,000.00
Premium on Certificates of Participation 3793 17,707,034.00 17,707,033.70 (0.30)
Discount on Certificates of Participation (Function 9299) 893

Proceeds from Loans/Leases 3720 249,726,855.00 64,316,422.00 64,316,421.89 (0.11)

Proceeds from the Sale of Capital Assets 3730

Loss Recoveries 3740

Proceeds of Forward Supply Contract 3760

Special Facilities Construction Advances 3770

Payments to Refunded Bond Escrow Agent (Function 9299) 760

Transfers In 3600 242,613,396.00 189,379,730.00 189,379,730.31 0.31

Transfers Out 9700 (548,652,215.00) (554,073,006.00) (554,073,005.21) 0.79

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 493,688,036.00 264,324,782.00 264,364,366.74 39,584.74

SPECIAL ITEMS

EXTRAORDINARY ITEMS
Net Change in Fund Balances (837,466,830.00) (882,781,442.00) {45,476,693.66) 837,304,748.34

Fund Balances, July 1, 2007 2800 882,781,442.00 882,781,442.00 882,781,441.83 (0.17)

Adjustment to Fund Balances 2891

Fund Balances, June 30, 2008 2700 45,314,612.00 837,304,748.17 837,304,748.17
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DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF MIAMI DADE COUNTY
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

PERMANENT FUND
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

Exhibit G-4
District Page 32

Variance with

Account Budgeted Amounts Actual Final Budget -
Number Original Final Amounts Positive (Negative)

REVENUES

Federal Direct 3100

Federal Through State and Local 3200

State Sources 3300

Local Sources:

Property Taxes Levied for Operational Purposes 3411
Property Taxes Levied for Debt Service 3412
Property Taxes Levied for Capital Projects 3413
Local Sales Taxes 3418
Other Local Revenue

Total Local Sources 3400

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES

Current:

Instruction 5000
Pupil Personnel Services 6100
Instructional Media Services 6200
Instruction and Curriculum Development Services 6300
Instructional Staff Training Services 6400
Instruction Related Technology 6500
School Board 7100
General Administration 7200
School Administration 7300
Facilities Acquisition and Construction 7410
Fiscal Services 7500
Food Services 7600
Central Services 7700
Pupil Transportation Services 7800
Operation of Plant 7900
Maintenance of Plant 8100
Administrative Technology Services 8200
Community Services 9100
Debt Service: (Function 9200)
Retirement of Principal 710
Interest 720
Dues, Fees and Issuance Costs 730
Miscellaneous Expenditures 790

Capital Outlay:

Facilities Acquisition and Construction 7420
Other Capital Outlay 9300
Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Long-Term Bonds Issued 3710
Premium on Sale of Bonds 3791
Discount on Sale of Bonds {(Function 9299) 891

Refunding Bonds Issued 3715
Premium on Refunding Bonds 3792
Discount on Refunding Bonds (Function 9299) 892

Certificates of Participation Issued 3750
Premium on Certificates of Participation 3793
Discount on Certificates of Participation (Function 9299) 893

Proceeds from Loans/Leases 3720

Proceeds from the Sale of Capital Assets 3730

Loss Recoveries 3740

Proceeds of Forward Supply Contract 3760

Special Facilities Construction Advances 3770

Payments to Refunded Bond Escrow Agent (Function 9299) 760

Transfers In 3600

Transfers Out 9700

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

SPECIAL ITEMS

EXTRAORDINARY ITEMS
Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balances, July 1, 2007 2800

Adjustment to Fund Balances 2891

Fund Balances, June 30, 2008 2700
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Exhibit I-5

District Page 43
DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF MIAMI DADE COUNTY
COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
PENSION TRUST FUNDS
June 30, 2008
Pension Total
Account Trust Fund Pension Trust
Number 871 Funds

ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents 1110 1,680,355.24 1,680,355.24
Investments 1160 29,110,991.04 29,110,991.04
Accounts Receivable, Net 1130
Interest Receivable 1170
Due from Other Funds-Budgetary 1141
Due from Other Agencies 1220

Total Assets 30,791,346.28 30,791,346.28
LIABILITIES
Salaries, Benefits and Payroll Taxes Payable 2110
Payroll Deductions and Withholdings 2170
Accounts Payable 2120
Due to Other Agencies 2230
Internal Accounts Payable 2290
Due to Other Funds-Budgetary 2161

Total Liabilities

NET ASSETS

Assets Held in Trust for Pension Benefits

30,791,346.28

30,791,346.28

Assets Held in Trust for Scholarships
and Other Purposes

Total Net Assets

30,791,346.28

30,791,346.28

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Exhibit I-6

District Page 44
DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF MIAMI DADE COUNTY
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
PENSION TRUST FUNDS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008
Pension Total
Account Trust Fund Pension Trust
Number 871 Funds
ADDITIONS
Contributions:
Employer 1,839,672.00 1,839,672.00
Plan Members
Gifts, Grants and Bequests 3440
Investment Earnings:
Interest on Investments 3431 1,071,368.78 1,071,368.78
Gain on Sale of Investments 3432
Net Increase (Decrease) in the Fair Value of Investments 3433 (3,138,299.46) (3,138,299.46)
Total Investment Earnings (2,066,930.68) (2,066,930.68)
Less Investment Expense 6,609.23 6,609.23
Net Investment Earnings (2,073,539.91) (2,073,539.91)
Total Additions (233,867.91) (233,867.91)
DEDUCTIONS
Salaries 100
Employee Benefits 200
Purchased Services 300
Other Expenses 700
Benefit Payments 720 4,041,664.98 4,041,664.98
Administrative Expenses 730 12,589.50 12,589.50
Total Deductions 4,054,254 .48 4,054,254 .48
Change In Net Assets (4,288,122.39) (4,288,122.39)
Net Assets - July 1, 2007 2885 35,079,468.67 35,079,468.67
Net Assets - June 30, 2008 2785 30,791,346.28 30,791,346.28

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF MIAMI DADE COUNTY

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
NONMAJOR COMPONENT UNITS
June 30, 2008

Total Nonmajor

Account Nonmajor Component
ASSETS Number Component Unit Units
Cash and Cash Equivalents 1110 34,312,365.57 34,312,365.57
Investments 1160 197,161.22 197,161.22
Taxes Receivable, net 1120
Accounts Receivable, net 1130 1,285,843.53 1,285,843.53
Interest Receivable 1170
Due from Rei 1180
Deposits Receivable 1210 301,606.86 301,606.86
Due from Other A 1220 3,259,504.99 3,259,504.99
Internal Balances
Inventory 1150
Prepaid Items 1230 2,262,441.64 2,262,441.64
Restricted Assets:
Cash with Fiscal Agent 1114
Deferred Charges:
Issuance Costs
Noncurrent assets:
Other Post-employment Benefits Obligation (asset) 1410
Capital Assets:
Land 1310 986,359.00 986,359.00
Land Improvements - Nondepreciable 1315
Construction in Progress 1360 218,424.09 218,424.09
Improvements Other Than Buildi 1320 2,060,832.61 2,060,832.61
Less Accumulated Depreciation 1329 (272,235.97) (272,235.97)
Buildings and Fixed Equipment 1330 10,120,460.16 10,120,460.16
Less Accumulated Depreciation 1339 (4,212,121.69) (4,212,121.69)
Furniture, Fixtures and Equipment 1340 19,370,423.49 19,370,423.49
Less Accumulated Depreciation 1349 (8,994,256.98) (8,994,256.98)
Motor Vehicles 1350 14,280.05 14,280.05
Less Accumulated Depreciation 1359 (4,760.02) (4,760.02)
Property Under Capital Leases 1370
Less A lated Depreciation 1379
Audio Visual Materials 1381 438,691.90 438,691.90
Less Acc lated Depreciation 1388 (200,596.66) (200,596.66)
Computer Software 1382 480,597.89 480,597.89
Less A tated Amortization 1389 (347,270.77) (347,270.77)
Total Assets 61,277,750.91 61,277,750.91
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
LIABILITIES
Salaries and Wages Payabie 2110 5,289,397.19 5,289,397.19
Payroll Deductions and Withholdings 2170 17,474.26 17,474.26
Accounts Payable 2120 2,284,272.28 2,284,272.28
Construction Contracts Payable 2140 36,209.00 36,209.00
Due to Fiscal Agent 2240
Accrued Interest on Sale of Bonds 2210
Deposits Payable 2220 537,648.06 537,648.06
Due to Other Agencies 2230 287,255.67 287,255.67
Sales Tax Payable 2260
Estimated Unpaid Claims 2271
Estimated Liability for Claims Adjustment 2272
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Portion Due Within One Year:
Section 1011.13 Notes Payable 2250
Notes Payable 2310 651,165.90 651,165.90
Bonds Payable 2320
Obligations Under Capital Leases 2315 117,560.88 117,560.88
Liability for Comp d Ab 2330
Certificates of Participation Payable 2340
Estimated Liability for Long-Term Claims 2350
Other Post-employment Benefits Obligation 2360
Estimated PECO Advance Payable 2370
Deferred Revenue 2410 117,540.00 117,540.00
Esti d Liability for Arbitrage Rebate 2280
Portion Due After One Year:
Notes Payable 2310 3,825,600.00 3,825,000.00
Bonds Payable 2320
Obligations Under Capital Leases 2315 18,350.73 18,350.73
Liability for Compensated Absences 2330
Certificates of Participation Payable 2340
Esti d Liability for Long-Term Claims 2350 175,000.00 175,000.00
Other Post-employment Benefits Obligation 2360
Estimated PECO Advance Payable 2370
Deferred Revenue 2410 237,961.00 237,961.00
Estimated Liability for Arbitrage Rebate 2280
Total Liabilities 13,594,834.97 13,594,834.97
NET ASSETS
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt 20,520,215.87 20,520,215.87
Restricted For:
Categorical Carryover Programs 2710 46,037.42 46,037.42
Debt Service 2750
Capital Projects 733,447.68 733,447.68
Other Purposes 15,942.14 15,942.14
Unrestricted 26,367,272.83 26,367,272.83
Total Net Assets 47,682,915.94 47,682,915.94
Total Liabilities and Net Assets 61,277,750.91 61,277,750.91

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF MIAMI DADE COUNTY

Exhibit K-1

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND DOE Page 1
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - GENERAL FUND District Page 55
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008 Fund 100
Account
Nurnber
REVENUES
Federal Direct:
Federal Impact, Current Operation 3121 9,591.85
Reserve Officers Training Corps (ROTC) 3191 2,112,959.18
Miscellaneous Federal Direct 3199
Total Federal Direct 3100 2,122,551.03
Federal Through State and Local:
Medicaid 3202 13,868,279.07
National Forest Funds 3255
Federal Through Local 3280
Miscellaneous Federal Through State 3299 2,830,267.08
Total Federal Through State and Local 3200 16,698,546.15
State:
Florida Education Finance Program 3310 690,734,194.00
‘Workforce Development 3315 99,949,248.00
‘Workforce Development Capitalization Incentive Grant 3316
‘Workforce Education Performance Incentive 3317 1,963,195.00
Adults with Disabilities 3318 2,060,427.00
CO&DS Withheld for Administrative Expense 3323 228,395.54
Categoricals:
Florida Teachers Lead Program 3334 6,228,676.00
Tnstructional Materials 3336 33,946,167.00
District Discretionary Lottery Funds 3344 16,872,577.00
Pupil Transportation 3354 29,465,075.00
Class Size Reduction/Operating Funds 3355 347,517,813.00
School Recognition Funds 3361 12,519,235.00
Excellent Teaching Program 3363 8,403,627.77
Voluntary Prekindergarten Program 3371 12,803,139.76
Preschool Projects 3372
Reading Programs 3373
Full Service Schools 3378 800,000.00
Other State:
Diagnostic and Learning Resources Centers 3335
Racing Commission Funds 3341
State Forest Funds 3342
State License Tax 3343 148,094.44
Other Miscellaneons State Revenue 3399 23,790,142.88
Total State 3300 1,287,430,007.39
Local:
District School Taxes 3411 1,286,264,984.85
Tax Redemptions 3421 15,440,607.87
Payment in Lieu of Taxes 3422
Excess Fees 3423
Tuition 3424 61,117.62
Rent 3425 2,828,899.55
Interest on Investments 3431 16,420,162.36
(Grain on Sale of Investments 3432
Net Increase (Decrease) in Fair Value of Investments 3433 582,259.55
Gifts, Grants and Bequests 3440
Adult General Education Course Fees 3461 580,940.57
Postsecondary Vocational Course Fees 3462 4,091,632.29
Continuing Workforce Education Course Fees 3463 169,441.82
Capital Improvement Fees 3464
Postsecondary Lab Fees 3465
Lifelong Leamning Fees 3466
Financial Aid Fees 3468 447,487.79
Other Student Fees 3469
Preschool Program Fees 3471 1,803,350.00
Pre-K Early Intervention Fees 3472
School Age Child Care Fees 3473 20,083,663.37
Other School, Course and Class Fees 3479 1,692,251.55
Miscellaneous Local:
Bus Fees 3491
Transportation Services-School Activities 3492 139,914.85
Sale of Junk 3493
Receipt of Federal Indirect Cost Rate 3494 7,939,020.84
Other Miscellaneous Local Sources 3495 19,041,844.09
Impact Fees 3496
Refunds of Prior Year's Expenditures 3497
Collections for Lost, Damaged and Sold Textbooks 3498 306,259.77
Receipt of Food Service Indirect Costs 3499 2,966,148.10
Total Local 3400 1,380,859,986.84
Total Revenues 3000 2,687,111,091.41
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DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF MIAMI DADE COUNTY

Exhibit K-1

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND DOE Page 3
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - GENERAL FUND (Continued) District Page 57
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008 Fund 100
Account
Number
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Proceeds from Loans/Leases 3720 851,438.02
Sales of Capital Assets 3730 350,312.47
Loss Recoveries 3740 13,262.71
Transfers In:
From Debt Service Funds 3620
From Capital Projects Funds 3630 209,370,515.83
From Special Revenue Funds 3640
From Permanent Funds 3660
From Internal Service Funds 3670
From Enterprise Funds 3690
Total Transfers In 3600 209,370,515.83
Transfers Out: (Function 9700)
To Debt Service Funds 920
To Capital Projects Funds 930 (2,482,231.00)
To Special Revenue Funds 940 (11,900,000.00)
To Permanent Funds 960
To Internal Service Funds 970
To Enterprise Funds 990
Total Transfers Out 9700 (14,382,231.00)
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 196,203,298.03
Net Change In Fund Balance (105,021,606.96)
Fund Balance, July 1, 2007 2800 137,381,796.68
Adjustments to Fund Balance 2891
2700 32,360,189.72

Fund Balance, June 30, 2008
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DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF MIAMI DADE COUNTY

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND Exhibit K-2
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - SPECIAL REVENUE DOE Page 4
FUND - FOOD SERVICES District Page 58
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008 Fund 410
Account
Number
REVENUES |
Federal Through State and Local:
School Lunch Reimbursement 3261 67,465,101.16
School Breakfast Reimbursement 3262 18,059,689.09
After School Snack Reimbursement 3263 1,541,411.84
Child Care Food Program 3264
USDA Donated Foods 3265 6,823,460.24
Cash in Lieu of Donated Foods 3266 124,195.59
Summer Food Service Program 3267 166,390.06
Nutrition Education and Training Program 3268
Other Food Service Revenues 3269
Federal Through Local 3280
Miscellaneous Federal Through State 3299
Total Federal Through State and Local 3200 94,180,247.98
State:
School Breakfast Supplement 3337 1,142,654.00
School Lunch Supplement 3338 1,487,115.00
Other Miscellaneous State Revenues 3399 37,860.00
Total State 3300 2,667,629.00
Local:
Interest on Investments 3431 274,805.03
Gain on Sale Of Investments 3432
Net Increase (Decrease) in Fair Value of Investments 3433 5,189.00
Gifts, Grants and Bequests 3440 5,000.00
Student Lunches 3451 14,500,182.97
Student Breakfasts 3452
Adult Breakfasts/Lunches 3453 1,551,288.00
Student and Adult a la Carte 3454 15,264,031.25
Student Snacks 3455
Other Food Sales 3456 7,050,261.48
Other Miscellaneous Local Sources 3495 12,850.00
Refunds of Prior Year's Expenditures 3497
Total Local 3400 38,663,607.73
Total Revenues 3000 135,511,484.71
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DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF MIAMI DADE COUNTY

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND Exhibit K-2
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - SPECIAL REVENUE DOE Page 5
FUND - FOOD SERVICES (Continued) District Page 59
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008 Fund 410
Account
Number

EXPENDITURES (Function 7600/9300)

Salaries 100 47,217,790.01

Employee Benefits 200 22,129,754.64

Purchased Services 300 4,520,336.26

Energy Services 400 5,559,718.51

Materials and Supplies 500 65,185,517.90

Capital Outlay 600 2,800.00

Other Expenses 700 2,971,517.09

Other Capital Outlay (Function 9300) 600
Total Expenditures 147,587,434.41
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over Expenditures (12,075,949.70)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Proceeds from Loans/Leases 3720
Proceeds from Sale of Capital Assets 3730
Loss Recoveries 3740 50,514.00
Transfers In:

From General Fund 3610 11,900,000.00

From Debt Service Funds 3620

From Capital Projects Funds 3630

Interfund 3650

From Permanent Funds 3660

From Internal Service Funds 3670

From Enterprise Funds 3690

Total Transfers In 3600 11,900,000.00

Transfers Out: (Function 9700)

To General Fund 910

To Debt Service Funds 920

To Capital Projects Funds 930

Interfund ' 950

To Permanent Funds 960

To Internal Service Funds 970

To Enterprise Funds 990

Total Transfers Out 9700

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 11,950,514.00
Net Change in Fund Balance (125,435.70)
Fund Balance, July 1, 2007 2800 204,802.46
Adjustments to Fund Balance 2891
Fund Balance, June 30, 2008 2700 79,366.76
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DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF MIAMI DADE COUNTY

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND Exhibit K-3
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - SPECIAL REVENUE DOE Page 6
FUND - OTHER FEDERAL PROGRAMS District Page 60
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008 Fund 420
Account
Number
REVENUES
Federal Direct:
Workforce Investment Act 3170
Community Action Programs 3180
Reserve Officers Training Corps (ROTC) 3191
Miscellaneous Federal Direct 3199 21,386,394.77
~ Total Federal Direct 3100 21,386,394.77
Federal Through State and Local:
Vocational Education Acts 3201 7,161,852.38
Medicaid 3202
Workforce Investment Act 3220
Eisenhower Math and Science 3226 27,058,286.32
Drug Free Schools 3227 2,296,983.58
Individuals with Disabilities Education Act 3230 84,684,603.71
Elcinentary and Secondary Education Act, Title I 3240 139,574,902.68
Adult General Education 3251 5,605,918.15
Vocational Rehabilitation 3253
Elementary and Secondary Education Act, Title V 3270 625,000.53
Federal Through Local 3280 642,309.99
Cuban and Haitian Refugee Program 3291
Eng Language Acq Enhancement & Achievement, Title I1I 3293 10,430,495.65
Miscellaneous Federal Through State ’ 3299 21,833,863.88
Total Federal Through State and Local 3200 299,914,216.87
State: '
Other Miscellaneous State Revenue 3399
Total State | 3300
Local:
Interest on Investments 3431
Gain on Sale of Investments 3432
Net Increase (Decrease) in Fair Value of Investments 3433
Gifts, Grants and Bequests 3440 3,463,930.15
Sale of Junk 3493
Other Miscellaneous Local Sources 3495 527,027.90
Refund of Prior Year's Expenditures 3497
Total Local 3400 3,990,958.05
Total Revenues 3000 325,291,569.69
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DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF MIAMI DADE COUNTY

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND Exhibit K-4
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - DOE Page 8
MISCELLANEOUS District Page 62
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008 FUND 490
Account
Number
REVENUES
Federal Through Local 3280
Interest on Investments 3431 20,820.77
Gain on Sale of Investments 3432
Net Increase (Decrease) in Fair Value of Investments 3433
Gifts, Grants and Bequests 3440 167,246.00
Other Miscellaneous Local Sources 3495 100,833.93
Total Revenues 3000 288,900.70
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Instruction 5000
Pupil Personnel Services 6100
Instructional Media Services 6200
Instruction and Curriculum Development Services 6300
Instructional Staff Training Services 6400
Instruction Related Technology 6500
Board 7100
General Administration 7200
School Administration 7300
Facilities Acquisition and Construction 7410
Fiscal Services 7500
Central Services 7700
Pupil Transportation Services 7800
Operation of Plant 7900 292,385.91
Maintenance of Plant 8100
Administrative Technology Services 8200
Community Services 9100 193,321.69
Capital Outlay:
Facilities Acquisition and Construction 7420
Other Capital Outlay ' 9300
Total Expenditures ‘ 485,707.60
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over Expenditures (196,806.90)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) '
Loss Recoveries ' 3740
Transfers In:
From General Fund 3610
From Debt Service Funds 3620
From Capital Projects Funds 3630
Interfund 3650
From Permanent Funds 3660
From Internal Service Funds 3670
From Enterprise Funds 3690
Total Transfers In 3600
Transfers Out: (Function 9700)
To General Fund 910
To Debt Service Funds 920
To Capital Projects Funds 930
Interfund 950
To Permanent Funds 960
To Internal Service Funds 970
To Enterprise Funds 990
Total Transfers Out 9700
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Net Change in Fund Balance (196,806.90)
Fund Balance, July 1, 2007 2800 630,309.56
Adjustments to Fund Balance 2891
Fund Balance, June 30, 2008 2700 433,502.66
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DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF MIAMI DADE COUNTY Exhibit K-7

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES DOE Page 14
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - PERMANENT FUND District Page 68
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008 FUND 000
Account
Number
REVENUES
Federal Direct 3100
Federal Through State and Local 3200
State Sources 3300
Local Sources 3400
Total Revenues
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Instruction 5000
Pupil Personnel Services 6100
Instructional Media Services 6200
Instruction and Curriculum Development Services 6300
Instructional Staff Training Services 6400
Instruction Related Technology 6500
Board 7100
General Administration 7200
School Administration 7300
Facilities Acquisition and Construction 7410
Fiscal Services 7500
Central Services 7700
Pupil Transportation Services 7800
Operation of Plant 7900
Maintenance of Plant 8100
Administrative Technology Services 8200
Community Services 9100
Capital Outlay:
Facilities Acquisition and Construction 7420
Other Capital Outlay 9300
Debt Service: (Function 9200)
Retirement of Principal 710
Interest 720
Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Sales of Capital Assets 3730
Loss Recoveries 3740
Transfers In
From General Fund 3610
From Debt Service Funds 3620
From Capital Projects Funds 3630
From Special Revenue Funds 3640
From Internal Service Funds 3670
From Enterprise Funds 3690
Total Transfers In 3600
Transfers Out (Function 9700)
To General Fund 910
To Debt Service Funds 920
To Capital Projects Funds 930
To Special Revenue Funds 940
To Internal Service Funds 970
To Enterprise Funds 990
Total Transfers Out 9700

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balance

Fund Balance, July 1, 2007 2800
Adjustments to Fund Balance 2891
Fund Balance, June 30, 2008 2700

ESE 348
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DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF MIAMI-DADE COUNTY

SCHEDULE 5
SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF FEDERAL FINANCIAL
ASSISTANCE PROGRAM EXPENDITURES
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

Exhibit K-16
DOE Page 25
District Page 79

Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor/Program Title Catalog of Pass - Amount of Amount
Federal Through Expenditures Provided
Domestic Grantor to
Assistance Number Subrecipients
Number
United States Department of Agriculture:
Indirect:
Florida Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services:
Food Donation 10.550 None $ 6,823,460.24 -
Florida Department of Education:
Child Nutrition Cluster:
School Breakfast Program 10.553 321 18,059,689.09
National School Lunch Program 10.555 300 67,465,101.16
After School Snack Program 10.555 None 1,541,411.84
Summer Food Service Program for Children 10.559 323-325 166,390.06
Total Child Nutrition Cluster 87,232,592.15
Florida Department of Health:
Child and Adult Care Food Program 10.558 None 128,653.89
Total Indirect 94,184,706.28
Tota! United States Department of Agriculture 94,184,706.28
United States Department of Commerce:
Direct:
National Telecommunications and {nformation Administration
Public Telecommunications Facilities Program 11.550 None 229,364.00
Total Direct 229,364.00
Total United States Department of Commerce 229,364.00
United States Department of Justice:
Direct:
Gang Resistance Education & Training 16.737 None 151,567.11
Total Direct 151,567.11
Total United States Department of Justice 151,567.11
United States Department of Labor:
Direct:
Employment and Training Administration
Youth Offender Registered Apprenticeship 17.261 None 11,462.87
Total Direct 11,462.87
Total United States Department of Labor 11,462.87




DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF MIAMI-DADE COUNTY

Exhibit K-16

DOE Page 25
SCHEDULE 5 District Page 79a
SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF FEDERAL FINANCIAL
ASSISTANCE PROGRAM EXPENDITURES
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008
Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor/Program Title Catalog of Pass - Amount of Amount
Federal Through Expenditures Provided
Domestic Grantor to
Assistance Number Subrecipients
Number
National Aeronautics and Space Administration
Direct:
NASA Explorers School Program None None 936.98 -
Indirect:
Science, Engineering, Mathematics & Aerospace Agency
Aerospace Academy None NAS-0213-MDC 120,081.79
Total National Aeronautics and Space Administration 121,018.77
National Science Foundation:
Direct:
Education and Human Resources 47.076 ESR-0084898 410.20
Indirect:
University of Miami
Promoting Science Among English Language Learners 47.076 ESI-0353331 70,310.06
Total National Science Foundation 70,720.26
United States Environmental Protection Agency
Direct:
Clean School Bus USA Assistance Agreement 66.036 SB96466907 148,960.85
Total United States Environmental Protection Agency 148,960.85
United States Department of Homeland Security
Indirect:
Department of Community Affairs
Hazard Mitigation Grant 97.039 None 4,067.42
Total United States Department of Homeland Security 4,067.42
United States Department of Education:
Direct:
Student Financial Aid Cluster
Federal Supplemental Educational Opportunity Grants 84.007 None 89,248.45
Federal Pell Grant Program 84.063 None 2,045,331.59
Total Student Financial Aid Cluster 2,134,580.04
Impact Aid 84.041 None 9,591.85
Magnet Schools Assistance 84.165 None 3,647,015.93
Emergency Response And Crisis Management Discretionary Grant 84.184E None 118,706.84
Safe Schools - Healthy Students Initiative 84.184L None 1,844,774.57
Fund for the Improvement of Education 84.215 None 6,853,657.61
Foreign Language Assistance 84.293 None 207,112.57
Gaining Early Awareness and Readiness for Undergraduate Progran 84.334 None 6,588.92
Transition to Teaching Program 84.350 None 456,478.75
Voluntary Public School Choice - | Choose 1l 84.361 None 2,300,290.86
Schooi Leadership 84.363 None 987,223.83
Teacher Incentive Program - Project Rise 84.374 None 1,819,153.62

Total Direct

20,385,175.39




DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF MIAMI-DADE COUNTY

SCHEDULE 5
SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF FEDERAL FINANCIAL
ASSISTANCE PROGRAM EXPENDITURES
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

Exhibit K-16
DOE Page 25
District Page 7Sb

Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor/Program Title Catalog of Pass - Amount of Amount
Federal Through Expenditures Provided
Domestic Grantor to
Assistance Number Subrecipients
Number
Indirect:
Florida Department of Education:
Special Education Cluster:
Special Education - Grants to States 84.027 262, 263 $ 83,101,544.46 -
Special Education - Preschool Grants 84.173 266, 267 1,583,059.25
Total Special Education Cluster 84,684,603.71
Adult Education - State Grant Program 84.002 191, 193, 194 5,605,918.15
Title | Grants to Local Educational Agencies 84.010 212, 223,226 138,602,883.92 2,268,158.00
Migrant Education - State Grant Program 84.011 211, 217 976,552.83
Vocational Education - Basic Grants to States 84.048 151 6,843,853.04
Title IV To Reach Ultimate Success Program (TRUST) 84.186 103 2,296,983.58
Education for Homeless Children and Youth 84.196 127 133,272.19
Tech-Prep Education 84.243 157 317,999.34
Charter Schools 84.282 298 1,244,494.56 1,218,104.06
21st Century Community Learning Centers 84.287 244 2,044,768.13 161,943.00
State Grants for Innovative Programs 84.298 113 625,000.53
Education Technology State Grants 84.318 121, 122 974,620.33
Comprehensive School Reform Demonstration 84.332 128, 129 8,650.95
Reading First State Grants 84.357 211 11,272,296.48 81,129.00
Early Reading First - LEARN Project 84.359 None 43,913.37
English Language Acquisition Grants 84.365 102 10,430,495.65
Mathematics and Science Partnerships 84.366 235 1,051,400.19
Improving Teacher Quality State Grants 84.367 224,225 27,058,286.32
University of Miami - Rosenstiel
Biological Response To Environmental Health Hazards 93.113 R25-E510713 43,845.36
University of Miami - School of Education
English Language Acquisition: National Professional Developmeni 84.195 T195N020106 1,239.03
Barry University
Even Start - State Educational Agencies 84.213 Subcontract 281,996.24
Total Indirect 294,543,073.90 3,729,334.06
Total United States Department of Education 314,928,249.29 3,729,334.06




DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF MIAMI-DADE COUNTY

SCHEDULE 5

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF FEDERAL FINANCIAL
ASSISTANCE PROGRAM EXPENDITURES
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

Exhibit K-16
DOE Page 25
District Page 79¢

Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor/Program Title Catalog of Pass - Amount of Amount
Federal Through Expenditures Provided
Domestic Grantor to
Assistance Number Subrecipients
Number
United States Department of Health and Human Services:
Direct:
Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration
Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services
Projects of Regional and National Significance 93.243 None $ 237,785.00 -
Center For Disease Control
Cooperative Agreements to Support Comprehensive School Health
Programs to Prevent the Spread of HiV & Other iImportant
Health Problems 93.938 None 355,786.17
Total Direct 593,571.17
Indirect:
Florida Department of Children & Families
Refugee and Entrant Assistance - Discretionary Grants 93.576 137, LK604, LK704, LK804 4,961,300.10
Abstinence Only Education Program 93.558 None 24,910.52
Total Indirect 4,986,210.62
Total United States Department of Health and Human Services 5,679,781.79
Corporation for National and Community Service:
Indirect:
Florida Department of Education:
Learn and Serve America - School and Community
Based Programs 94.004 232, 233, 234 69,078.55
Total Corporation for National and Community Service 69,078.55
United States Department of Defense:
Direct:
Army Junior Reserve Officers Training Corps None None 2,157,258.53
Total Federal Financial Assistance $ 417,656,235.72 3,729,334.06







The School Board of Miami-Dade County, Florida, adheres to a policy of nondiscrimination in
employment and educational programs/activities and programs/activities receiving Federal financial
assistance from the Department of Education, and strives affirmatively to provide equal
opportunity for all as required by:

Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 - prohibits discrimination on the basis of race,
color, religion, or national origin.

Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended - prohibits discrimination in
employment on the basis of race, color, religion, gender, or national origin.

Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972 - prohibits discrimination on the basis of
gender.

Age Discrimination in Employment Act of 1967 (ADEA), as amended - prohibits
discrimination on the basis of age with respect to individuals who are at least 40.

The Equal Pay Act of 1963, as amended, prohibits sex discrimination in payment
of wages to women and men performing substantially equal work in the same
establishment.

Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 - prohibits discrimination against the
disabled.

Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (ADA) - prohibits discrimination against
individuals with disabilities in employment, public service, public accommodations and
telecommunications.

The Family and Medical Leave Act of 1993 (FMLA) - requires covered employers to
provide up to 12 weeks of unpaid, job-protected leave to “eligible” employees for certain
family and medical reasons.

The Pregnancy Discrimination Act of 1978 - prohibits discrimination in employment on
the basis of pregnancy, childbirth, or related medical conditions.

Florida Educational Equity Act (FEEA) - prohibits discrimination on the basis of race,
gender, national origin, marital status, or handicap against a student or employee.

Florida Civil Rights Act of 1992 - secures for all individuals within the state freedom from
discrimination because of race, color, religion, sex, national origin, age, handicap, or
marital status.

School Board Rules 6Gx13-4A-1.01, 6Gx13-4A-1.32, and 6Gx13-5D-1.10 prohibit
harassment and/or discrimination against a student or employee on the basis of gender,
race, color, religion, ethnic or national origin, political beliefs, marital status, age, sexual
orientation, social and family background, linguistic preference, pregnancy, or disability.

Veterans are provided re-employment rights in accordance with P.L. 93-508 (Federal Law) and
Section 295.07 (Florida Statutes), which stipulate categorical preferences for employment.

REVISED 5/9/03






